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SIMEST:
our role and mission

SIMEST is a joint-stock company of the Cassa depositi e prestiti Group and a subsidiary of SACE
Spa. Other shareholders include banks and businesses in the private sector. The Company was
established in 1991 to promote investments in Italian businesses abroad and to provide them
with technical and financial support. Since 1999 the Company has managed public-sector
financial instruments in support of the international expansion of Italian businesses. SIMEST
supports companies in their growth over the entire international expansion lifecycle, from the
initial assessment of new markets to the expansion through direct investments.

Areas of activity

Financing to support internationalization and exports

SIMEST manages financial instruments designed to support exports and other forms of interna-
tionalization for Italian businesses. More specifically, SIMEST:

- supports export credits related to investment goods;

- finances feasibility studies and technical assistance programs connected with foreign investments;
- finances programs for entering non-EU markets;

We would like to thank the following partner companies for kindly - finances the capitalization of exporting SMEs;

allowing us to make use of their photographic materials: - finances the participation in trade fairs and exhibitions in non-EU markets.
- Consorzio Casalasco del Pomodoro Soc. Agr. Coop.
- Exclusiva Design Srl EqUity investments

- Fincantieri Spa

- Holding Terra Moretti Srl
- IMI Fabi Spa

- LImmagine Ritrovata Srl

Working alongside Italian companies, SIMEST can acquire up to 49% of the equity of foreign
firms, both directly and through a Venture Capital Fund, in order to support foreign investments
in certain countries outside the European Union. SIMEST’s investment also gives the Italian com-

. Olsa Spa pany access to interest-rate support to finance its equity interest in the non-EU company.

- Oppent Spa SIMEST can also acquire stakes (up to 49%), at market terms and without subsidy, in Italian
- Prysmian Powerlink Srl companies or their EU subsidiaries that pursue investments in production and in innovation and
- Tiberina Holding Srl research (bailouts are excluded).

Activities based on EU funding
ﬁ SIMEST is one of the ltalian financial institutions authorized by the EU to serve as a lead financial
institution within the scope of partnership programs, e.g. the Neighborhood Investment Facility
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BUREAU VERITAS
Certification

BUREAU VERITAS |8
Certification
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e (NIF), the Latin America Investment Facility (LAIF), Trust Fund Africa, the Investment Facility for
" Central Asia (IFCA), etc.
SIMEST Spa Share capital € 164.646.231,88 fully paid-up
Societa italiana per le imprese all’estero Registered with the Rome Companies Register,
Corso Vittorio Emanuele 1l, 323 | 00186 Roma Tax ID and VAT no. 04102891001
T +39 06 68635 1| F +39 06 68635 220 Registered with the Rome Chamber of Commerce Company subject to the direction
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Corporate officers

Board of Auditors

PO S

Board of Directors

Daniele Discepolo Laura Guazzoni Carlo Hassan
Chairman Standing auditor Standing auditor
] Daniela Frusone Livio Domenico Trombone
Salvatore Rebecchini! Maurizio Marchesini Andrea Novelli Standing auditor Standing auditor

Chairman Vice Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Director Designated by the State Audit Court
(Law 259/1958)

Simonetta Acri? Antonella Baldino
Director Director

Pio Silvestris

Supervisory Body

Vincenzo Malitesta | Internal standing member (and interim Chairman since July 8, 2016)4
Ugo Lecis | External standing member

' o , Audit firm
Ivana Greco Michele Tronconi

Dl Director PricewaterhouseCoopers Spa

(engaged by the Shareholders’ Meeting of June 12, 2015 for a period of three years until the approval of the 2017
financial statements).

1. Since February 18, 2016, replacing Luigi Chessa.

3. Since January 18, 2017, replacing Carlo Alberto Manfredi Selvaggi.
2. Since January 27, 2017, replacing Camilla Cionini Visani. 4. Replacing Roberto Tasca.
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1. Highlights of reclassified data

(€ millions)
2016 2015
RECLASSIFIED BALANCE SHEET HIGHLIGHTS
Total assets 531 506
Lending for equity investments 506 480
Liabilities for financing 196 176
Shareholders’ equity 324 316
RECLASSIFIED INCOME HIGHLIGHTS
Gross income 45 48
Operating income 17 12
Net income 1 4
FUNDS MOBILIZED AND MANAGED (€ millions)
Funds for the year 2016 2015
Soft loans 93 87
Equity investments 233 183
Total for internationalization 326 270
Export credit support 5,808 5,118
Total for export 5,808 5,118
Total new funds 6,134 5,389
Balances at period end 2016 2015
Soft loans 279 343
Equity investments 671 662
Totals at period end 950 1,005
KEY F|NANC|AL |ND|CATORS (units; percentages)
2016 2015
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Cost-to-income ratio (%) 49 46
ROE (%) 3 1
OPERATING STRUCTURE
Average number of employees (incl. seconded) 155 152
(units)
2016 2015
Customers served 1,174 1,249
Project countries o8 Q9

10

2016

MOBILIZED
RESOURCES

ENABLED
INITIATIVES

INTERNATIONALIZATION

Soft loans
Equity participations
Interest rate subsidies

New investments

Report on operations

EXPORT

5.8bn

Buyer credit
Supplier credit

6.95b"

Export credit support

1,174

companies supported

» 98

countries
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2. Organizational structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

INTERNAL AUDIT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
& GENERAL MANAGER

RISK MANAGEMENT

INSTITUTIONAL RELATIONS

IDENTITY & COMMUNICATIONS

HUMAN RESOURCES

————— LEGAL AFFAIRS

——+—— ADMINISTRATION, PLANNING AND CONTROL

——+—— ORGANIZATION, SYSTEMS AND SERVICES

———— OPERATIONS

MARKETING & BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

. Qutsourced unit
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. Corporate bodies

EXPORT CREDIT

INVESTMENTS

. Structural hierarchy

Project countries in 2016
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AMERICA EUROPE AFRICA ASIA OCEANIA
Argentina Albania Algeria Azerbaijan Australia
Bermuda France Angola Bangladesh
Brazil Germany Cameroon China
Canada Hungary Egypt India
Chile Ireland Ethiopia Indonesia
Mexico Italy Ghana Japan
Uruguay Macedonia Morocco Kazakhstan
U.S.A. Russia Namibia Malaysia
Serbia Nigeria Myanmar
Spain Rwanda Oman
Sweden Senegal Pakistan
Switzerland South Africa Singapore
Turkey Tunisia South Korea
Ukraine Uganda UAE

United Kingdom

13
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3. 2016-2020 Business Plan

2016-2020 Business Plan

On December 21, 2016 SIMEST’s Board of Directors approved the 2016-2020 Business Plan, which was
prepared in accordance with the guidelines provided by SACE and in line with the Group business plan
approved by the Board of Directors of the Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti (CDP).

The Business Plan seeks to make SIMEST the reference institution for SMEs and mid-caps internationa-
lization, supporting Italian companies along the entire internationalization cycle, taking an additionality
approach with respect to the other market actors. The Plan is based on the analysis of SIMEST’s results
during its first 25 years of operation, which found that the Company has effectively supported the inter-
national expansion of Italian businesses in the private sector and the export of investment goods, contri-
buting to the growth of partner companies and the creation of employment in ltaly as well.

The analysis also revealed that Italian companies still lag behind the main European partners in their
degree of internationalization and that there is still room for improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
the instruments offered by SIMEST.

Specific actions will also be taken to maximize access for companies, including mid-sized firms, to the
Group’s offer, and initiatives to simplify these products, making better use of public resources.

The overhaul of the instrument of soft loans, which sought to make it simpler and more attractive to busi-
nesses, was completed at the end of 2016. The benefits for SMEs have resulted in greater financing oppor-
tunities, lower costs, a simpler application process and a significant reduction in response time. Over the
course of the period covered by the Plan, new types of financing guarantees will be identified and further
simplifications and improvements made.

The export credit support initiatives in the Plan focus on developing a new supplier credit product for
SMEs and mid-caps, improving accessibility for businesses and optimizing the use of public resources.
The volumes envisaged in the Plan for this instrument are dependent upon allocation of the necessary
public funding.

Finally, with regard to equity investments, the projects will concentrate on expanding the product range,
with emphasis on increasing the ability to handle risk.

Over the period covered by the Plan, around €3 billion is expected to be allocated for internationalization
and more than €22 billion for supporting exports, a significant increase over the prior five-year period.
To guarantee the offering of products and the improvement in operational efficiency, measures have been
identified and implemented in the commercial, image and communication, human resources and ICT
systems that will also make it possible to have a greater impact on the companies served and double the
number of customers by 2020.
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AMBITION: TO PROMOTE THE INTERNATIONAL EXPANSION
OF ITALIAN SMES AND MID-CAP COMPANIES ALONG THE ENTIRE
INTERNATIONALIZATION LIFE CYCLE

PLAN GUIDELINES

Increased use

Simplifying and Maximizing Operational of leverage and scope

improving products synergies efficiency of intervention

ENABLING FACTORS

Commercial Image and H Digitalization
A uman resources . .
strategy communication and innovation
Export Internationalization
22
25 BN EUROS 7 ~2

PROJECTED
+7% +55%

MOBILIZED AND MANAGED
FUNDS IN 2016-2020

2011-2015 2016-2020 2011-2015 2016-2020

The ltalian export
and internationalization hub

One of the many initiatives envisaged in CDP’s 2016-2020 business plan approved in December 2015, is to
strengthen and optimize the support for internationalization and exports by creating a single access hub
for companies within SACE (“one-door” model).

In implementing the 2016-2020 CDP Group Business Plan, on September 30, 2016 CDP transferred its sha-
res in SIMEST to SACE Spa. This operation has strengthened the Italian export and internationalization
hub by creating a mechanism to support the growth and international competitiveness of the national
production system. This combination of two CDP Group companies, which have already been closely
collaborating since the beginning of 2016, is designed to offer Italian companies an integrated support
system to meet all their needs relating to exports and internationalization. The one-door model combines
the insurance-financial products, services and expertise of SACE and SIMEST, through synergies and
complementarity that benefits Italian companies. This model calls for the creation of an integrated com-
mercial network (single account) with the goal of increasing the number of customers served through an
active approach; in addition, origination channels will be reinforced and special campaigns targeted at
specific economic sectors will be undertaken. This system for supporting export and internationalization
is the only one of its kind in Europe, representing a competitive advantage for ltalian companies.

(€ billions)
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4. Economic background

The international environment

In 2016, the global economy grew at a rate of 3.1%, based on changes in GDP, slightly slower than the 3.2%
posted in 2015. The advanced economies registered a 1.6% increase in GDP, compared with 2.1% in 2015,
while the rate of growth for emerging and developing economies remained essentially unchanged at 4.1%.
The growth rate in international trade also declined from 2.7% in 2015 to 1.9% in 2016.!

Breaking down these figures by geographic area, the United States posted GDP growth of 1.6%, a slow-
down compared with 2.6% growth in 2015, as a result of the weak performance in the first half of 2016.!
The euro area posted moderate GDP growth of 1.7%, compared with 2.0% in 2015.1

The persistent rapid growth in the emerging and developing economies is the result of different rates of
growth from one country to another. Whereas GDP contracted by 0.6% in Russia (-3.7% in 2015) and by
3.5% in Brazil (-3.8% in 2015), there was growth in both China (6.7% in 2016 compared with 6.9% in 2015)
and India (6.6% in 2016 compared with 7.6% in 2015).

Global flows of foreign direct investment (FDI) in 2016 fell by 13% from 2015, reaching $1,525 billion, com-
pared with $1,750 billion for the prior year. FDI into advanced economies decreased by 9% from the pre-
vious year, going from $963 billion in 2015 to $872 billion in 2016, as a result of changes in direct invest-
ment in European Union, where inflows declined by 18%. FDI going to the United States rose by 11% owing
to a number of cross-border M&As.?

The 20% decline in FDI into emerging economies (down from $749 billion in 2015 to $600 billion in 2016)
is due to the decrease in investment in Developing Asia (-22%) and Latin America (-19%). By comparison,
transitioning economies posted an increase of inflows of 38%, attributable, among other things, to growth
in direct investment in Russia (+62%) owing to privatization in the energy sector.?

Global outlook for 2017

Forecasts for 2017 point to a moderate recovery in the global economy, driven by higher growth rates in
emerging and developing economies. Fiscal stimulus measures in the main economies — particularly in the
United States — could further push growth rates above forecasts. The international economic situation,
however, is affected by the persistence of certain risks. First, political uncertainty remains high in the
United States, following the outcome of the Presidential election, and in Europe, due to concern about the
effects of Brexit and the referendum in Italy and to expectations concerning the results of the upcoming
elections in France, Germany and the Netherlands. This political situation therefore could impact compa-
nies’ investment decisions, which would affect the recovery of the capital accumulation process.
Geopolitical tensions fuelled by conflicts in the Middle East and the threat of terrorism, as well as growing
protectionist sentiments, with negative implications for the world trade, are also a source of risk. Possible
turbulence in the emerging economies linked to the normalization of monetary policy in the United States
is another factor of uncertainty weighing on growth projections. In the euro area, episodes of market vo-
latility could be reflected in financing conditions.

The GDP forecasts of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) for 2017 project GDP growth of 3.4% globally;
2.3% in the United States; 1.6% in the euro area, 6.5% in China, and 7.2% in India. In Brazil, the economy
is projected to expand by 0.2%, while the growth in GDP in Russia is expected to be 1.1%, an improvement

' See International Monetary Fund (IMF), World Economic Outlook Update, January 2017.
2 See UNCTAD, Global Investment Trends Monitor, February 2017.
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over 2016. World trade for 2017 is forecast to grow by 3.8%,3 faster than global GDP growth.
UNCTAD expects FDI to increase by around 10% in 2017 in light of a projection scenario that sees a re-
bound in the global economy and an acceleration in world trade.*

The Italian economy

Italy posted a GDP growth of 0.9% in 2016, compared with 0.7% in 2015.5 The average annual rate of
inflation was -0.1%, (+0.1% in 2015),¢ eflecting the effects of the protracted decline in commodity prices
— particularly energy products — combined with persistent weakness in household consumption, which
showed signs of a slight recovery in 2016.

Employment rose to 57.3% of the labor force and the unemployment rate stood at 12%.7 Industrial pro-
duction rose by an average of 1.6% in 2016 compared with 2015.7 Gross fixed capital formation in 2016
grew by 2.1% compared with 2015; collective consumption rose by 0.8%.8 Exports of goods and services
grew by 1.1% in value and by 1.2% in volume in 2016 compared with 2015, while imports fell in value terms
by 1.4% and rose in volume by 3.1%.°

The trade balance for 2016 showed a surplus of €51.6 billion; excluding energy, the surplus was €78 bil-
lion.® Foreign direct investment into Italy came to €25.4 billion, compared with €11.7 billion in 2015, while
FDI out of Italy amounted to €18.2 billion (€12.6 billion in 2015).1°

More than 29,000 Italian companies held portions of risk capital in foreign companies at the end of 2014,
increasing 1% from 2013, mainly in EU countries (53%). In 2014 there was a 2% increase in the share of
investments in non-EU companies compared with 2013, confirmation of the higher presence of Italian
enterprises in world markets.

According to IMF projections, Italy’s GDP will grow by 0.7% in 2017, less than the 1.6% growth forecast in
the whole euro area and the expected growth rates for France (1.3%), for Germany (1.5%) and for Spain
(2.3%).12

Under the Bank of Italy’s macroeconomic framework for the 2017-2019 three-year period,® Italy’s GDP is
projected to grow by 1% per year, driven by domestic demand and by a gradual strengthening of foreign
demand, which should benefit from, among other things, the depreciation of the euro against the main
currencies. However, there is still the risk that the recovery of the global economy could be held back by
the spread of protectionism and by possible turbulence in the emerging economies.

3 See International Monetary Fund, op. cit.

See UNCTAD, op. cit.

See Bank of Italy, Economic Bulletin no. 1/2017, January 20, 2017; International Monetary Fund, op. cit.
See ISTAT, Prezzi al consumo. Dati definitivi (dicembre 2016), January 16, 2017.

See ISTAT, Occupati e disoccupati. Dati provvisori (dicembre 2016), January 31, 2017; ISTAT, Produzione industriale
(dicembre 2016), February 10, 2017.

8 See Bank of Italy, Economic Bulletin no. /2017, January 20, 2017.

° See ISTAT, Commercio estero e prezzi delle importazioni (dicembre 2016), February 16, 2017.

10 See Bank of Italy, Bilancia dei pagamenti e posizione patrimoniale sull’estero, February 17, 2017.

11 See Politecnico di Milano-ICE; Reprint database, Italia multinazionale (Rapporto di Aggiornamento 2016).
12 See International Monetary Fund, op. cit.
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5. Developments in operations

5.1 Mobilized and managed funds

Funds mobilized by SIMEST and resources managed through subsidized public funds in 2016 totaled
€6,134 million, up 14% on the figure for 2015 (€5,389 million). This increase in operations was mainly
attributable to export credit support instruments (€5.8 billion), which made it possible to provide over
€6.9 billion in support of exports, with the highest amount ever reached for the buyer credit program.
Investments by companies supported by SIMEST are expected to total around €1,100 million, thanks to
the highest amount of equity investments acquired since the formation of the Company, against funds for
international expansion of €326 million.

As at December 31, 2016, SIMEST now supports 1,174 businesses in their internationalization and export
programs in around 100 countries and about 150 of these customers used more than one SIMEST product.

MOBILIZED AND MANAGED FUNDS (cash flows for the period)

(€ millions)

Line of business 2016 2015 % change
Soft loans 93 87 7%

SIMEST direct equity investments 103 99 4%

Venture Capital Fund equity investments 8 8 -3%

Grants on equity investments* 123 76 61%

TOTAL FUNDS FOR INTERNATIONALIZATION 326 270 21%
Export credit support* 5,808 5,118 13%

TOTAL FUNDS FOR EXPORT 5,808 5,118 13%
TOTAL FUNDS MOBILIZED AND MANAGED 6,134 5,389 14%

* Total underlying nominal value.

The portfolio managed at the end of the year is slightly lower than a year earlier, as a result of the re-
duction in the volume of new soft loans recorded up until the introduction of the recent reform. On the
contrary, the portfolio of equity investments continues to grow.
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BALANCES AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

(€ millions)

Line of business 2016 2015 % change
INTERNATIONALIZATION 279 343 -19%
SIMEST direct equity investments 536 514 4%

Equity investments through the Venture Capital Fund 135 148 -9%

TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENT 671 662 1%
TOTALS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 950 1,005 -5%

5.2 Internationalization
5.2.1 Soft loans (Law 394/81 Fund and Sustainable Growth Fund)

SIMEST manages a revolving fund (Law 394/81 Fund) to disburse subsidized financing on behalf of the Mi-
nistry for Economic Development to assist Italian businesses in their internationalization efforts. In 2016,
the Support Committee (the interministerial body responsible for authorizing uses of the fund) approved
188 operations for a total of €93 million (compared with 151 operations for a total of €87 million in 2015),
contributing to the carrying out of more than €130 million in investments.

SOFT LOANS
Volumes approved — by product

No. of Total investments
Products transactions € millions financed (€ millions)
Programs for entering non-EU markets 17 84 m
Capitalization of exporting SMEs 23 6 7
Feasibility studies and technical assistance programs 16 2 12
SMEs participation in trade fairs/exhibitions 32 1 1
OVERALL TOTAL 188 93 132

Subsidized financing for internationalization breaks down as follows: a total of €84 million to programs
to help companies enter foreign markets outside the EU, usually involving setting up permanent establi-
shments; €6 million in financing for the capitalization of exporting SMEs; a total of €2 million for feasi-
bility studies and technical assistance programs connected with Italian investments in non-EU countries;
financing to help SMEs participate in trade fairs and exhibitions outside the EU, finally, totaled €1 million.
In terms of the size of the enterprises receiving this financing in 2016, 96% were SMEs (85% of the volu-
me) and 4% were large enterprises (15% of the volume).

The volume of new financing granted rose compared with 2015, mainly due to the impact of the reform
of the instruments provided by the Ministry of Economic Development, which took effect on October
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24, 2016. The reform made it possible to relaunch the instrument in view of the gradual decline in the
effective subsidy involved as a result of falling market interest rates, taking account of the need for be-
neficiary firms to post bank or insurance guarantees on a portion of the financing. In the first 10 months
of 2016, 123 operations were approved for a total of €61 million, while in November and December, once
the reform took effect, 65 operations were approved for a total of €32 million, a 47% increase in just two
months.

The changes introduced by the reform include reducing the time needed to obtain financing, expanding
the types of expenses eligible for financing under the programs for entering foreign markets, reducing
the guarantees required of SMEs and of mid-cap companies® as well, raising the maximum amount of
financing that can be granted and simplifying operational procedures.

An agreement was signed on signed on 21 April 2016, making SIMEST responsible for managing an €80
million share of the Sustainable Growth Fund, supplementing the funding of the Law 394/81 Fund, which
can only be used for programs for entering foreign markets and capitalization; recipients are not requi-
red to provide a guarantee. The Sustainable Growth Fund finances programs that help Italian compa-
nies enter non-EU markets and improve and safeguard the capital strength of small and medium-sized
exporters. Subsidies are used to finance programs that have a significant impact on the competitiveness
of the Italian production system. In 2016, more than €4 million in funding from the Sustainable Growth
Fund were approved.

V7

SOFT LOANS (€ millions)

Financing granted — by country

A
~
W
)

Programs for Feasibility studies and Participation
L entering non-EU technical- of SMEs in trade
E Country markets assistance programs fairs/exhibitions
B US.A 30 0.4 01
- o 7 0.2 01
China . 0.0
United Arab Emirates 7 :
Brazil
Russia 2 0.1
Tunisia 2
Cameroon 2 01
Switzerland 2
Namibia 2
2 0.2
Turkey
2016 SIMEST PROFILES 23 12 0.5

Other

EXCLUSIVA DESIGN: . T | _ . OVERALL TOTAL* 84 2 1

* Excluding financing for the capitalization of exporting SMEs.

We helped the Roman firm, an ambassador of Italian style throughout the world,
open the doors to the Russian market through a program for entering non-EU markets:

13 Mid-cap companies have between 250 and 3,000 employees.
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Financing involved a total of 39 countries, with programs to assist companies to enter foreign markets
being concentrated in the United States, China and the United Arab Emirates. Feasibility studies and tech-
nical assistance programs mainly concerned the United States and China, whereas initiatives to facilitate
SMEs participation in trade fairs and exhibitions primarily concerned the geographic areas of the United
Arab Emirates and Turkey. During the year, there were 128 operations for a total of €68 million and 166
disbursements for a total of €33 million relating to existing financing.

5.2.2 Equity investments
SIMEST direct equity investments

In 2016, the SIMEST Board of Directors approved 95 operations, including:

® 41 new investment projects;

e 8 capital increases of existing shareholdings;

® 46 adjustments to previously approved or evaluated projects.

The companies, whose equity investments have been approved by SIMEST during the year, call for:

e a financial commitment for SIMEST acquisitions of about €132 million;

e total final investment of € 1,176 million, by investee companies.

Overall, the volume of operations increased, compared with 2015, confirming the positive contribution
that SIMEST is making sustaining Italian organizations investments in foreign markets. In 2016, working
with SACE’s network, the Company intensified its promotional efforts geared towards target customers
and local counterparties, in addition to participating in joint and coordinated meetings and events. One-
on-one meetings were held with companies interested in international expansion, which gave rise to op-
portunities for assessing foreign direct investments.

SIMEST DIRECT EQUITY INVESTMENT (€ millions)
Equity investments approved - by country

Planned investments SIMEST
Country by partners commitment
Italy 601 53
US.A. 238 26
Brazil 80 12
China 30 n
Mexico 14 6
Uganda 99 5
Argentina 27 3
Canada 3 3
Other 84 13
OVERALL TOTAL 1,176 132

The two main geographic areas for equity investments in foreign companies are the Americas and Asia,
primarily focusing on the United States and Brazil, accounting for 30% of total commitments across 13
projects (9 in the US and 4 in Brazil) for a total commitment of about €39 million.

Significant new equity investments were also made in ltaly (with 8 initiatives for €53 million), to support
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internationalization initiatives that call for investment in Italy or across multiple countries. The main areas
where initiatives are expected to be carried out include Asia and the Middle East, with emphasis on China,
Japan, Indonesia, Singapore, Malaysia, and India.

SIMEST DIRECT EQUITY INVESTMENT (€ millions)
Equity investments approved - by industry

Planned investments SIMEST
Industry by partners commitment
Electrical/Mechanical engineering 318 40
Food & agriculture 267 30
Energy 132 17
Automotive 320 13
Chemical/Pharmaceutical 51 9
Electronics/IT 1 5
Rubber/Plastics 1 3
Other 66 15
OVERALL TOTAL 1,176 132

In terms of industries, the focus continues to be on initiatives in Italy’s leading industries: electrical and
mechanical engineering, food and agriculture, energy, automotive and chemical/pharmaceutical.

During the year, SIMEST completed 33 operations involving equity investments approved during or prior to
2016 for a total of €103 million, including:

® 20 new equity investments in foreign companies totalling about of about €57 million;

e 7 capital increases in foreign companies held prior to December 31, 2015, for a total of €9 million;

® 5 new equity investments in Italian companies for a total of €32 million;

e a capital increase in an Italian company held prior to December 31, 2015, in the amount of €5 million.

SIMEST DIRECT EQUITY INVESTMENT (€ millions)
Equity investments acquired — by country

Planned investments SIMEST
Country by partners investment
Italy 331 37
US.A. 244 25
Brazil 191 21
China 23 5
Uganda 929 4
Argentina 27 3
Canada 3 3
Romania 9 2
India 6 1
Mexico 12 1
Other 6 1
OVERALL TOTAL 951 103
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Total operations in equity investments rose from €99 million in 2015 to €103 million in 2016, registering the
highest volume since the Company’s formation, with more than €950 million of investments facilitated.
In 2016, in execution of agreements with partner companies, 32 equity investments were sold for a total
of €82 million after value adjustments. At year end, following portfolio transactions in 2016, SIMEST held
equity investments in 237 companies in Italy and abroad for a total of €536 million (including the interest in
FINEST), compared with €514 million at the end of 2015.

SIMEST DIRECT EQUITY INVESTMENT (€ millions)
Equity investments acquired - by industry

Planned investments SIMEST
Industry by partners investment
Electrical/Mechanical engineering 278 29
Food & agriculture 255 28
Services 128 12
Chemical/Pharmaceutical 51 8
Energy 104 8
Electronics/IT 19 6
Automotive 45 4
Basic metals/Steel 8 4
Other 63 4
OVERALL TOTAL 951 103

el

=

2016 SIMEST PROFILES -

.

TERRA MORETTI wine conquering
the EU market

We obtained a stake in the Brescian group, providing support for its acquisition

of Sella & Mosca and Teruzzi & Puthod from Campari and 'helping it compete
with Europe’s largest wine producers.
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New equity investments are concentrated mainly in the electrical and mechanical engineering (28%), food
and agriculture (27%), and services (about 12%) industries. These are followed by the chemical/pharmaceu-
tical and energy industries, which together account for more than 15% of the total.

Equity investments in the Venture Capital Fund

The Venture Capital Fund managed by SIMEST on behalf of Italy’s Ministry of Economic Development is
represented by a minority interest —in addition to the direct equity investment by SIMEST and/or FINEST -
in the share capital of enterprises established by Italian companies abroad (outside the EU in geographic
areas of strategic interest).

In 2016, a total of 27 equity investments were approved by the Guidance and Oversight Committee (the in-
terministerial body responsible for authorizing uses of the fund). This included 11 new investment projects,
2 capital increases for existing shareholdings, and 14 revisions of previously approved projects.

The three-year term of office of the Guidance and Oversight Committee came to an end of September
2016 and was renewed in early 2017. This affected the volume of the activity registered for the year.

More specifically, these approvals of equity investments provide for:

e a total commitment under the Venture Capital Fund of about €11 million;

e a total cumulative investment by the foreign companies of €291 million.
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VENTURE CAPITAL FUND (€ millions)
Projects approved - by country

Planned investments SIMEST
Country by partners commitment
New projects and capital increases
Brazil 150 4
Uganda 99 1
China 18 2
Serbia 8 1
Turkey 7 1
India 4 1
Macedonia 3 1
Tunisia 2 0.3
OVERALL TOTAL 291 11

The geographic breakdown of the projects approved reveals — in line with the SIMEST direct equity in-
vestments — a marked focus on countries that Italian businesses have targeted for their international
expansion.

In 2016, equity investments acquired with resources from the Venture Capital Fund totaled about €8 mil-
lion, which can be broken down as follows:

® 8 new equity investments in foreign companies — in addition to the interests acquired directly by SIMEST
and/or FINEST - for a total of about €6 million;

e 3 capital increases in companies held prior to December 31, 2015, for a total of about €2 million.

By geographic area, new initiatives drawing on the fund saw a reduction in Brazil (to 2 operations from 7
in 2015), China and India saw the greatest number of initiatives (at 3 operations) for a total of €2 million
and €1 million respectively. There were also 2 operations, in Mexico and Uganda, accounting for €1 million
each. The development in equity investments was affected by the suspension of the work of the Guidan-
ce and Oversight Committee beginning in September. Had there not been this interruption, the volume
of new investments for 2016 would have reached €12 million. In 2016, in execution of agreements with
partner companies, 16 equity investments were sold for a total of €21 million. As a result of the various
transactions carried out during the year, the portfolio of equity interests held by SIMEST using resources
from the Venture Capital Fund totaled about €135 million at the end of 2016 (around €148 million in 2015)
and involved 182 foreign companies (190 in 2015). The trend in investments and in the portfolio reflects the
preference of the Guidance and Oversight Committee to limit each individual equity interest to no more
than €1 million and the suspension in approval activity in the final quarter of 2016.

Grants for equity investments (Law 295/73 Fund)

SIMEST manages, on behalf of the Ministry of Economic Development, the interest subsidies to support
international expansion under the Law 295/73 Fund.

These subsidies (pursuant to Article 4 of Law 100/90) are disbursed by SIMEST to Italian companies on
the financing to acquire their portion of the interest in a foreign company, held by SIMEST, in countries
outside of the European Union.

Under a specific agreement, SIMEST also conducts all assessment and disbursement activities on behalf
of FINEST (financing entity for the region of Friuli-Venezia Giulia) in the form of grants under the Law
295/73 Fund for operations carried out by FINEST.

26

Report on operations

In 2016, the Subsidies Committee (the interministerial body responsible for authorizing uses of the fund)
approved 32 operations for a total of €123 million (compared with 39 operations for a total of €76 million
in 2015). Of these 29 transaction concerned investments, held by SIMEST, in non-EU countries (total of
€118 million) and 3 transactions involved investments held by FINEST (total of €5 million).

GRANTS FOR EQUITY INVESTMENTS (€ millions)
Deferred principal amount approved - by country

Underlying
Country nominal value
U.S.A. 51
Brazil 22
India 13
China 12
Uganda 5
Russia 4
Argentina 4
Canada 3
Turkey 3
South Africa 2
Other 2
OVERALL TOTAL 123

The main countries attracting funding were the United States (42%), Brazil (18%), India and China.

GRANTS FOR EQUITY INVESTMENTS (€ millions)
Deferred principal amount approved - by industry

Underlying
Industry nominal value
Electrical/Mechanical engineering 58
Chemical/Pharmaceutical 26
Energy 10
Automotive 8
Construction 5
Rubber/Plastics 5
Food & agriculture 3
Electronics/IT 3
Other a4
OVERALL TOTAL 123

The main industries were electrical and mechanical engineering, chemical/pharmaceutical, energy and
automotive.
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TIBERINA from Perugia sets{ughts--
on SOUTH AMERICA

We assisted the Umbrian group - one of Italy’s main manufacturers of autor
systems and components — in making an equity investment in Brazil and /Arg
supporting it in its rise to become a leader in the sector in Latin America.
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Start-Up Fund equity investments

In 2016 the Start-Up Fund, established with Ministerial Decree 102 of March 4, 2011 and managed by
SIMEST, continued its operation, albeit to a limited extent. During the year, no new project was approved,
but a new equity investment in the amount of €0.2 million was acquired on a project approved in 2015.
Pursuant to agreements with partner companies, an equity investment of €0.2 million was transferred.
As a result of these operations, the portfolio of equity investments using the Start-Up Fund totaled about
€0.8 million at year end.

FINEST Spa

SIMEST holds an interest of 3.9% in FINEST Spa of Pordenone (a member of the Fruilia Group), which had
a paid-up share capital of about €137 million at June 30, 2016, acquired at a cost of €5.2 million. As of
June 30, 2016, FINEST had conducted support activities for businesses in the Italian northeast for a total
of over €8.5 million, entirely involving equity investments. The portfolio of equity investments included 70
interests totaling over €60 million (€53 million after write-downs), whereas outstanding financing totaled
over €26 million.

5.3 Export credit support (Law 295/73 Fund)

SIMEST manages a fund (Law 295/73 Fund) on behalf of the Ministry of Economic Development that is
used to stabilize interest rates and distribute grants in support of export credit financing.

Interest rate stabilization programs, in the form of both buyer and supplier credit, are aimed at supporting
the export of capital goods (plant, machinery, replacement parts, associated studies, works and other
services) throughout the world.

In 2016, the Subsidies Committee (the interministerial body responsible for authorizing uses of the fund)
approved 64 operations for a total of €5,808 million (compared with 44 operations for a total of €5,118
million in 2015), out of more than €6.9 billion in export financing facilitated.

EXPORT CREDIT SUPPORT (€ millions)

Deferred principal amount approved - by product

No. of Underlying
Product transactions nominal value
Buyer credit 14 5,590
Supplier credit 50 218
OVERALL TOTAL 64 5,808

Of these transactions, €5,590 million took the form of buyer credit for contracts between Italian exporters
and foreign customers in the shipbuilding (cruise ship segment), petrochemicals, energy, and infrastructu-
re industries. The remaining €218 million, in the form of supplier credit, concerned contracts for machinery
and components sold by Italian companies to foreign customers.
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PRYSMIAN POWERLINK:
energy under the Northern European sea " :

Along with SACE, we supported a Milanese company by providing it With*exp

credit support for the production of submarine power cables connecting— —

the United Kingdom and Norway. —--:""' :
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EXPORT CREDIT SUPPORT (€ millions)

Deferred principal amount approved - by country

Underlying
Country nominal value
Bermuda 2,280
United Kingdom 1,894
Oman 764
U.S.A. 460
Cameroon 170
Indonesia 40
Turkey 17
Brazil 16
Sweden 16
Kazakhstan "
Other 140
OVERALL TOTAL 5,808

With regard to export credit, the main countries targeted are the United Kingdom, Oman, the United Sta-
tes and Cameroon; this excludes cruise ship sales, which are concentrated in Bermuda.

EXPORT CREDIT SUPPORT (€ millions)

Deferred principal amount approved — by industry

Underlying
Industry nominal value
Marine and shipbuilding 4,132
Petrochemical 764
Construction 638
Electrical/Mechanical engineering 120
Energy 40
Textiles/Clothing 21
Aerospace 16
Basic metals/Steel 1
Other 67
OVERALL TOTAL 5,808

Export credit volumes mainly refer to contracts for the marine and shipbuilding (71%), petrochemical
(13%), and infrastructure and construction (11%) industries, while mechanical engineering, energy, machi-
nery and aeronautics largely make up the remainder.
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5.4 Promotion and development efforts

Promotion and development efforts in 2016 were undertaken in close coordination with SACE and were
aimed both at domestic initiatives for the dissemination of the products and services provided by the
Company to Italian businesses and at our involvement in missions abroad to provide technical support
to the Italian enterprises concerned. By establishing a direct presence in certain regional areas, we have
been able to improve our commercial coverage, in synergy with SACE’s territorial network.

Domestic activities

SIMEST strengthened its presence in Italy through the following main commercial initiatives:
e strengthening its presence in the North and combining its local offices with those of SACE;
e covering geographical areas in the Centre-South with dedicated professionals seconded to the Rome
office;
e increasingly engaging in cooperative relationships with institutional, market, and trade and employer
association counterparties;
e using electronic promotional channels and efforts to cover the smaller customer segments and to widely
spread information on product innovations.
In order to create more frequent operational synergies and to make it easier to meet with customers, in
March 2016 SIMEST’s Milan office was relocated to shared space in the local SACE BT office and two new
employees were hired to handle customer coverage in Northwest Italy and Emilia Romagna. In June a new
commercial relations and development area was set up and, at the end of August, an employee responsi-
ble for handling customers in Triveneto was seconded to SACE Spa’s Venezia-Mestre office.
SIMEST also took part in the 16 stages of the road show organized by the Cabina di Regia per I'Interna-
zionalizzazione (Internationalization Control Room) overseen by the Ministry of Economic Development
and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation, which saw all private and public-sector
players in the Italian economy involved in a joint action to promote public support mechanisms throughout
the country. SIMEST signed an agreement in January with the National Council of the Italian Accounting
Profession to organize a series of meetings, held in 10 Italian cities, to provide refresher courses and trai-
ning to accountants in those local areas who advise SMEs on procedures for entering foreign markets.
As part of its efforts to collaborate with local authorities, SIMEST and SACE signed an agreement with the
Region of Puglia (October 2016). SIMEST also took part in 4 stages of the road show entitled “Cooperazio-
ne allo Sviluppo dell’'Unione Europea: nuovi trend ed opportunita per le imprese italiane” (European Union
Development Cooperation: new trends and opportunities for Italian enterprises), which was organized by
Confindustria, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation, and ICE and saw the invol-
vement of over 150 businesses and associations. In October a communication and marketing campaign
was launched in support of the changes made by the reform of Law 394/81 Fund instruments, which took
effect in October 2016. In addition to using all types of media, information on the reform was provided
at 12 road shows held throughout Italy for industry associations, chambers of commerce and banks; as
a result of the reform and these support initiatives, there was an increase in applications for financing in
terms of both number and requested amount.

Missions abroad

In 2016, SIMEST took part in 14 institutional and private-sector missions to the following countries: Al-
geria, Argentina, Brazil, China (two missions), Korea, Cuba (two missions), Egypt, Iran (two missions),
Kazakhstan, Pakistan, Qatar, Tunisia and Turkey. Furthermore, there was a mission to Peru to assist the
Ministry of Economic Development on a specific industrial cooperation project. During these missions,
SIMEST provided support to Italian enterprises within the scope of numerous business forums and other
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business-to-business events in order to discuss issues related to business opportunities in these countries
and with the goal of facilitating meetings with local businesses to help foster partnerships. These missions
focused on the specific sectors of interest to each of the countries concerned.

International relations

During the year, SIMEST strengthened its relationships with the major development finance institutions
and took on a leading role within the European Development Finance Institutions (EDFI) when our CEO
was given a seat on the board of directors of EDFI and of its management company, formed to manage
EU funds targeted at the private sector (ElectriFl, AgriFl, etc.). At the operational level, SIMEST took an
active partin all of EDFI’s meetings and working groups in 2016 and participated in international events.
In addition, SIMEST signed an agreement with Indonesia Infrastructure Finance to support investment
in Indonesia by one of our Italian partners, a memorandum of understanding with Spanish bilateral fi-
nance institution COFIDES, and a partnership agreement with E4IMPACT, a spin-off foundation of Uni-
versita Cattolica del Sacro Cuore in Milan that forges agreements with African universities to offer an
MBA program to train local managers in order to develop Italian business initiatives in Africa. In March,
during the business mission to Korea, organized by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Ministry of Economic
Development, ICE, ABI and Confindustria, a partnership agreement was signed between SIMEST and
Invest Korea, the government agency that promotes and facilitates investment in that country. The
agreement seeks to strengthen economic ties in the field of investment and innovation to assist Italian
companies, especially SMEs, in carrying out projects in Korea.
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6. Risk management

Pursuant to Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, with regard to the main risks and uncertainties to which
the Company is exposed in its equity investments, SIMEST has implemented policies for managing finan-
cial risk, including exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

In 2016 the Board of Directors approved the SIMEST Investment Rules. The primary purpose of the ru-
les is to ensure that SIMEST, in coordination with the Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti, is able to
handle the risks assumed with its own resources. The rules therefore contain the same risk management
principles introduced at the Group Parent level, taking account of SIMEST’s characteristics and size. The
consequent operational policies were also issued.

Within the scope of these rules and the Investment Rules in force since November 2015, there are specific
investment guidelines and specific measures for verifying credit ratings for each counterparty both prior
to entering into a relationship and ongoing. The rules govern the functioning of the investment and the
monitoring process, and establish the roles of the various units involved.

The outcome of the origination activities conducted by the various organizational units is summarized
in investment proposals, which are then submitted for evaluation by the Investment Committee. In the
event a proposal is deemed valid and of interest — given the related financial/credit risks and methods for
managing and mitigating such risks — it is submitted to the SIMEST Board of Directors for final approval.
Subsequently, agreements with the partner are defined based on the guidelines and other indications
provided by the Board.

With regard to risk monitoring and mitigation, the credit risk related to the equity investment is first mi-
tigated by acquiring direct commitments from the Italian partners for the forward acquisition of the SI-
MEST shareholdings, and these commitments are backed, in part, by corporate sureties, collateral and
bank or insurance guarantees.

GUARANTEES (%; € millions)
2016 2015

Direct commitments of Italian partners 83% 410 79% 370

Commitments backed by bank or insurance guarantees 12% 58 16% 77

Commitments backed by collateral 6% 28 5% 21

TOTAL DISBURSED 496 468

As at December 31, 2016, direct commitments with Italian partners for the purchase of the equity interests
totaled around €410 million (€370 million at December 31, 2015). Commitments backed by bank and/or
insurance guarantees totaled about €58 million (€77 million at December 31, 2015), and those backed by
collateral totaled €28 million (€21 million at December 31, 2015).

Price and foreign exchange risks are mitigated through contractual language, which generally guarantees
that SIMEST will recoup its investment at the price paid in euros for the investment.

Liquidity risk and interest rate risk are constantly monitored using a cash flow analysis approach, espe-
cially for equity investments. In addition, in order to reduce exposure to liquidity and interest rate risk, in
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2016 we continued to review the composition of debt to ensure the consistency of the temporal profile of
equity investments with the related debt by taking on new medium and long-term financing and renego-
tiating existing lines of credit.

With regard to equity investments, as of December 31, 2016 14 pre-litigation situations occured for which
negotiations are under way to recover the credit or settlement has been reached and SIMEST is receiving
payments. These positions refer to receivables — for repayment of principal and net of amounts received
from guarantors — of around €12 million. Furthermore, at the end of the year, there were 61 positions, also
relating to positions no longer registered in the portfolio, being litigated (mainly enforcement orders, ar-
rangements with creditors and insolvency proceedings), corresponding to receivables — for repayment of
principal and net of amounts received from guarantors — of around €28 million.

During the year, the Company completed a project to design and implement the principles, processes
and operational tools for analyzing and monitoring the risk associated with investments. This monitoring
is done in order to quickly identify any abnormal credit positions so as to permit management to take
specific measures to protect assets and, if necessary, undertake credit recovery.

Special safeguards have also been put into place for the subsidized funds managed by SIMEST aimed at
monitoring and mitigating the main risks to which the funds are exposed. More specifically, to mitigate
the higher risk, i.e. credit risk, to which the Law 394/81 Fund is exposed, in 2016 the scoring system used
by SIMEST to financially assess applicants was updated. The proposed changes were approved by the
relevant Subsidies Committee and will be gradually applied to all the financing applications received by
SIMEST.

As to the Law 295/73 Fund, in 2016 the Subsidies Committee approved the plan for hedging risk using de-
rivative financial instruments to mitigate interest rate risk, the primary risk to which the fund is exposed.
This plan has been fully implemented.

Following the approval of the Risk Rules, during the year SIMEST implemented the process for asses-
sing the congruity between the available capital resources (represented by shareholders’ equity) and the
economic capital necessary for the risks assumed, measured using the Internal Capital Adequacy Asses-
sment Process (ICAAP) employed by the Group Parent. The results of the assessments confirmed that the
capital is fully congruent with the current situation and with the projected horizon of the Business Plan.
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7. Internal control system

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, procedures, and organizational structures designed
to ensure compliance with applicable regulations, in accordance with corporate strategies and the achie-
vement of targets set by Company management.
More specifically, first-level controls, or line controls, are conducted by operational and administrative
units. They are built into organizational procedures and are designed to ensure that operations are carried
out correctly.
Second-level controls, or risk management controls, are carried out by different organizational units and
are designed to ensure that risk governance processes are properly implemented, that the operational
limits set for the various departments are respected and that business operations comply with regula-
tions. Finally, third-level controls are performed by the Internal Audit unit, which provides monitoring and
periodic assessment of the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management, control and governance
system, based on the nature and severity of the risk. For the performance of its tasks, the Internal Audit
unit submits an action plan to the Board of Directors, which sets out the audits scheduled in line with the
‘(l [ l I_;- I_| [: E ] I risks associated with the‘ activities aimed ct‘cchieving the business objectcives. The units re‘p.orts‘on its
results on an annual basis to the Board of Directors and the Board of Auditors. However, critical issued
identified during examinations are immediately reported to the relevant Company units so that they can
implement corrective actions.

2016 SIMEST PROFILES
OPPENT’s pneumatic tube system
travels from Milan to DUBAI

We provided subsidized financing to a Lombardy firm to help it enter non
specifically opening a sales office. The goal: to expand its presence in the
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8. Governance and support
activities

8.1 Communication

Projects to restyle the Company’s image, enhance online communications and celebrate the Company’s
25th anniversary were completed in 2016, such as the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) pilot project.
Specifically, SIMEST’s institutional image was completely overhauled with new graphics for all supporting
material. With regard to online communication, social media became more extensively used in issuing
press releases. In November, a new version of SIMEST's website was launched, which is now accessible
from all devices with innovative design. Between November and December 2016 the Company launched
a communication campaign, making heavy use of online and digital channels, to promote the new inter-
nationalization financing options introduced by the Ministry of Economic Development.

Furthermore, SIMEST, in collaboration with SACE and ICE, held numerous promotional meetings throu-
ghout Italy. It also reinforced its press-driven communication efforts through a large number of articles
focusing on SIMEST and its activity.

In the area of corporate events, on November 16, 2016 SIMEST organized a conference for its partner
companies to celebrate its 25th anniversary. The event was held at the Milan Stock Exchange; in addition
to members of SIMEST’s and the CDP Group’s top management, speakers included representatives of
financial institutions and partner companies. 200 representatives of companies and professional firms at-
tended. During the event, videos on SIMEST were shown and a published work on the impact of SIMEST’s
activities on the companies in its portfolio was presented.

8.2 Human resources and organization

Organization and workforce

In 2016, the Company made significant changes to its structure in preparation for the drafting and imple-
mentation of the 2016-2020 Business Plan.

Following the systems in place at Cassa depositi e prestiti and SACE, the first-level organizational units
have been called “Areas” and second-level ones called “Units” (except for certain Units responsible for
staff functions, which report directly to the CEO/General Manager). In order to rationalize investment
and financing activities, those activities relating to equity investments and subsidized financing under the
Law 394/81 Fund have been combined into a single Investments Area. The management and monitoring
of equity investments also come under the Investments Area.

In addition, in order to create new lines of business to expand the range of products offered to customers
and to carry out promotional efforts throughout Italy, the Marketing and Business Development Area was
formed. An Export Credit Area was also created to provide export credit support in the form of both buyer
and supplier credit. In order to make processes more efficient, the Back Office and Middle Office Units,
among the administrative organizational units under the CEO/General Manager, were centralized in the
new Operations Area. The Back Office Unit disburses financing and processes repayments, while the Mid-
dle Office Unit is responsible for acquiring new equity investments and the operational and administrative
management of investment and financing contracts.
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The Administration, Planning and Control Area was established to carry out accounting, financial repor-
ting, management control and treasury tasks directly or in support of activities centralized at the level of
the Group Parent.

In order to better coordinate activities pertaining organization and internal operational services, the Or-
ganization, Systems and Services Area was formed, grouping within it the Organization Unit and the IT
and Internal Operations Unit. This Area is responsible for overseeing procurement, in part prompted by
the Group Parent’s policy for centralizing this function.

The Legal Affairs Area has also been maintained, centralizing all the secretariat activities for the corpo-
rate bodies and the Subsidies Committee. A Legal Advisory Unit was added to provide greater support to
companies. The Human Resources Unit’s duties remain unchanged and it continues to report directly to
the CEO/Managing Director.

The Identity & Communications Unit, which is responsible for external and internal communications and
media relations, also reports directly to the CEO/General Manager, as the Institutional Relations Unit
does, focusing on managing relationships with national institutions in synergy with the Group. Finally, in
accordance with developments within Cassa depositi e prestiti and SACE and to better monitor the con-
trol functions, the Risk Management Unit (which has been outsourced to CDP) now reports directly to the
CEO/General Manager.

During the year, the Company promoted job rotation for 35 persons, thereby providing an opportunity for
employees to grow. Ordinary employee turnover was managed by shifting employees to cover the related
positions.

The Company successfully completed the three-year renewal of the certifications for all enterprise sy-
stems in accordance with the ISO 9001:2008 quality standard, as well as the certification of the Occupa-
tional Health & Safety Management System in accordance with the OHSAS 18001:2007 standard.

As at December 31, 2016, the Company’s workforce totaled 162 employees (including 8 CDP employees
seconded to SIMEST: 4 senior managers, 2 middle managers, and 2 area professionals) for a decrease of 1
in 2016. This decrease was the net effect of 8 employees leaving the Company during the year and 7 new
additions (3 of which CDP employees seconded to SIMEST). The average ages of the workforce is 49, whi-
le the percentage of employees with university degrees (first degrees and post-graduate qualifications) is
over 60% of the workforce.

COMPANY WORKFORCE*

Workforce at 31/12/2016 Workforce at 31/12/2015
Senior management 12 10
Middle management 78 79
Non-managerial personnel 72 74
TOTAL 162 163

* Including 21 part-time employees as at December 31, 2016 (3 fewer than at December 31, 2015), and the CDP
employees seconded to SIMEST.
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Personnel management and development

In 2016, SIMEST provided a total of 4,550 hours of classroom training (an increase of 38% over the ap-
proximately 3,300 hours provided in 2015) to assist employees in their career development. These courses
concerned technical and specialist topics in order to enhance the management of business projects and
behavioral coursework to improve relationship skills. Particular emphasis was placed on the integration
with SACE, in particular on understanding SACE’s instruments, to allow employees engaged in promo-
tional efforts throughout Italy to be able to advertise these instruments. Mandatory training pursuant to
Legislative Decree 81/2001 was provided.

8.3 Legal disputes

There were three labor disputes pending before the court at December 31, 2016, two of which concern
a total amount of around €280 thousand. The third matter regards a legal challenge to an employee di-
smissal.

As to tax disputes, the appeal is under way to cancel a tax demand for a registration tax dating to the
transfer by Mediocredito Centrale to SIMEST of assets to subsidized funds, which should reasonably
conclude in SIMEST’s favor, analogous to the outcome regarding Mediocredito Centrale’s joint obligor.

8.4 Corporate governance

Compliance model 231/2001

SIMEST has adopted the compliance model required under Legislative Decree 231/2001 (“Model 231).
This model identifies the areas of the Company most exposed to the risk of committing any of the crimes
specified under the aforementioned decree and establishes the principles, rules, and measures of the
system of controls adopted to govern “relevant” operations, which is subject to subsequent updates. On
May 20, 2016, the Board of Directors approved an updated to the General section of Model 231.

The Supervisory Body is responsible for overseeing the functioning of and compliance with the Model, for
updating its contents, and for assisting the competent corporate bodies in its proper, effective implemen-
tation. SIMEST’s Supervisory Body consists of three members: one legal expert, one expert in business
and economics, and CDP’s Chief Audit Officer or another designated CDP Group employee possessing
considerable experience with the internal control system.

On July 8, 2016, the Chairman of the Supervisory Body resigned after taking on new duties within the
Company and the eldest member became the new Chairman pursuant to its rules. In 2016, the Supervi-
sory Body was assisted by the Compliance Unit in providing ongoing, independent oversight of the regular
execution of Company processes and of the overall system of internal controls. During the year the Super-
visory Body met 11 times and held one meeting with the supervisory body of SACE Spa. As of November
15, 2016 SIMEST is subject to the management and coordination of its Parent Company SACE Spa in
accordance with the “Rules on the exercise of management and coordination of CDP Group companies”
approved by CDP on March 23, 2016.

Code of ethics
In line with the Code of ethics of Cassa depositi e prestiti Spa and of the companies subject to its mana-
gement and coordination, the SIMEST Code of conduct is an integral part of Model 231 and contains the

general rules of conduct and the values that SIMEST promotes and safeguards in conducting the organi-
zation’s activities. The Code of conduct guides SIMEST relationships and establishes that the principles,
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values, and rules defined therein are to apply both to internal SIMEST personnel (Company employees,
senior executives, and other parties subject to Company management) and to “any external parties who
have relations of any kind, either directly or indirectly, with SIMEST”.

SIMEST also promotes awareness of and compliance with Model 231 and the Code of conduct by way
of specific contractual clauses that include specific measures to be taken in the event of violation of the
values expressed therein, and a system of internal controls has been implemented that detects, measures,
and monitors risks resulting from failure to follow the Code of conduct. Both the Code of conduct and the
principles of SIMEST’s compliance model can be found on the Company’s web site.

Internal committees

As far as internal committees are concerned, in May 2016, the update to the Rules for Investment (intro-
duced in November 2015), amended specifically to incorporate the management of non-performing loans,
was approved. The composition of the Investment Committee and the Investment Monitoring Committee
was redefined following the introduction of new provisions on the Company’s shareholding and organi-
zational structure on June 13, 2016. Finally, in December 2016, an additional update to the Rules for In-
vestment, containing provisions on the new process for monitoring the equity investments portfolio, was
approved.

Related parties

SACE Spa holds a 76% interest in SIMEST, starting from September 30, 2016 and exercises management
and control over SIMEST. With regard to transactions with the controlling shareholder SACE Spa and the
other members of the CDP Group, pursuant to Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, SIMEST, CDP and
SACE have signed an Export Bank Convention regarding the financing of international expansion and
exports of Italian businesses, with CDP providing financial support and SACE providing guarantees. In
addition, in relations with the majority shareholder, remuneration was paid to one member of SACE Spa’s
senior management who sits on the SIMEST Board of Directors and payment was made for professional
services received within the scope of a contract relating to the assessment of environmental impact pa-
rameters for export credit support transactions. Furthermore, the Company leases an office in Milan from
SACE BT (a subsidiary of SACE Spa) and an office in Venice from SACE Spa.

With regard to other Group companies, SIMEST made use of a line of credit issued by CDP in a pool tran-
saction with credit institutions. In addition, in 2016 remuneration was paid for the three members of the
SIMEST Board of Directors appointed from among CDP’s senior managers and for internal auditing and
risk management units outsourced to CDP. In 2016, six CDP employees were seconded to SIMEST and one
SIMEST employee was seconded to CDP, all on SIMEST’s payroll. There are also IRES tax payables due to
Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti Spa for joining the Group tax consolidation mechanism.

During the year, SIMEST transferred to Fincantieri Spa its share in the jointly-held foreign company Fin-
cantieri U.S.A. Inc. as provided by contract. These transactions with related parties have all been con-
ducted on an arm’s length basis.
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Cruising the WORLD
with FINCANTIERI

Through an export credit support operation, we, along with SACE, helped Italy’s
top shipbuilder fill an order from Virgin for three passengers ships.
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9. Sustainability
and socio-economic impact

9.1 Impact of SIMEST’s action on the Italian
economy

Since its establishment in 1991 until 2015 SIMEST has offered Italian companies interested in international
expansion, particularly SMEs and mid-cap companies, ongoing support through a wide range of financial
instruments. In 2016 the effects of these operations were monitored by quantifying the direct impacts on
export industries, the indirect impacts on the beneficiary companies and the ripple effects on the Italian
economy.

Performance of the companies that made direct foreign investment'+

Over its 25 years history SIMEST has made over 770 investments for a commitment of more than €1 bil-
lion, plus another €0.3 billion and over 300 equity investments through the Venture Capital Fund that has
been in operation since 2004. Operations have involved Italy’s main productive sectors and companies
that have made direct foreign investments with SIMEST have achieved better results in terms of revenue,
employment and investment in property, plant and equipment than the performance of Italian GDP and
the market.

Italian companies that made direct foreign investment with SIMEST have experienced an 8% average
annual increase in revenues compared with the average increase in Italian GDP of 0.9%. The number of
people employed in Italy by SIMEST partners has risen by 8% per year on average, compared with an ave-
rage decline of 0.5% registered for Italian industrial firms. In addition, with regard to property, plant and
equipment to be used for productive activities, there was an average increase of 8% for SIMEST’s partner
companies, compared with an average annual decrease of 0.6% for Italian industrial undertakings.'s
The impact of the Venture Capital Fund on the country system and at the macroeconomic level's transla-
tes into revenue generated in 2014 alone in the amount of €1.7 billion (panel of 88 equity investments), for
an average annual return on public support (as the sum of the average estimated tax revenue generated
and the return on capital employed) of 11%.

Impact on the economy of resources managed for soft loans and export credit support programs

Between 1999 (when SIMEST took over this activity) and 2015, over 3,500 projects for international expan-
sion, amounting to €2.6 billion, were funded. In 2015 alone over €62 million in financing for such projects
was disbursed, the impact of which on the country system at the macroeconomic level translates into
€237 million in foreign investment facilitated, with an average investment multiplier of 1.2, as well as bet-
ter borrowing costs for companies than those available on the market.

14 EY Financial Advisors SpA data on SIMEST’s activities.

15 SIMEST, 25 anni di viaggi con le imprese italiane nel mondo, November 2016.

16 Measurement of performance of companies receiving SIMEST support in the second half of 2015 — Final Report,
Ernst & Young — April 2016.
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SIMEST internally conducted a specific impact analysis on the beneficiary companies and on the country
system of these operations. The analysis period considered (2006 to 2015), allowed, among other things,
an in-depth examination of the positive effects of these instruments during the years that the world eco-
nomy experienced its greatest slowdown. Italian companies that took advantage of internationalization
financing managed by SIMEST saw an average annual increase in turnover of 5.9% (compared with a
0.5% rise in GDP), of 4.2% in employment in Italy (compared with an average annual employment rate
increased for industrial firms of 0.1%) and of 5.9% for property, plant and equipment (compared with a
contraction for all industrial firms). The data gathered during the study confirm the importance of the
instrument, whose effects, among other things, have contributed to mitigating the adverse effects of the
economic crisis.

As to export credit support products, between 1999 and 2015 more than €63 billion was disbursed for
about around 3,200 projects; in 2015 alone over €90 million in grants were funded under this program.
The impact on the country system at the macroeconomic level translates into more than €38 billion in
foreign orders facilitated in 2015, with an average investment multiplier of 23, as well as indirect benefits
in terms of lower borrowing costs for exporter companies.

9.2 Development impact

SIMEST’s mission is to support Italian companies in expanding their business and competing abroad,
thereby contributing to the development of the private sector and the sustainable growth of the coun-
tries in which it invests. Through its activity, SIMEST therefore seeks to support a dynamic, secure and
sustainable private sector, which is crucial for expanding markets. To better determine its impact on the
economic growth of the target countries, in 2016 SIMEST took the first steps towards implementing a
model that can track its effects on business expansion, private-sector development and green growth.
In 2016 SIMEST launched a pilot program, in conjunction with a leading specialist consulting firm, to
evaluate the impact of the projects it has financed. This project was conducted by performing a compa-
rative analysis of the models for measuring the development impact adopted by the leading European
development finance institutions.

A set of indicators (economic, social and environmental), shared within the EDFI Development Effecti-
veness Working Group, was selected and applied to a sample of projects in the energy and agribusiness
industries and new investments, with the goal of measuring the social-environmental impact in the
country targeted by the operation in terms of job creation, female employment, local procurement, CO.
emissions avoided and clean energy produced, and local tax revenues generated by the investment.
Working with its Italian partners (23 companies analyzed),'” SIMEST collected data on the impact of
its efforts in foreign countries in terms of tax revenue generated, local procurement, employment and
reduced emissions.

Out of the overall panel, an in-depth study was conducted on six partners involved in the project. The
partners came from different industries and totaled more than €190 million of total investments, with
SIMEST’s contribution amounting to over €18 million.

7 The companies sampled operate in the agribusiness, energy and manufacturing services industries, with investments
concentrated in Asia, Africa, Europe, the Middle East and North America.
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Results of the pilot project

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT Indicators Value created

Local procurement over €76 million

Over €18 million invested - .
Taxes on income produced over €38 million

(6 partners involved in pilot project)
over 33 thousand new jobs

) ) ) Direct jobs created of which 65% women
In industries: electronics, steel,
services, energy Sustainable energy generated over 210 Mwh
CO. emissions saved over 121 thousand tons

The preliminary results show that the companies supported by SIMEST build their local value chains by
purchasing goods and services from suppliers in the countries in which they operate and promote eco-
nomy activity that has further positive spillover in the country. SIMEST also contributes indirectly to job
and value creation through the local suppliers of its partners. SIMEST’s investments have had a positive
impact on the environment, since the companies involved in the pilot project produce clean energy and
help to reduce CO; emissions.

SIMEST, with the aim of creating a development impact assessment tool that can monitor the impact
of its portfolio, has begun determining the specific priority areas for development, consistent with its
mission, which will evolve around the themes of business expansion, development of the private sector
and sustainable growth. Each area will include specific performance indicators that SIMEST will use to
periodically measure progress. This model will enable a better understanding of the impact of SIMEST’s
work at the international level.

9.3 Corporate Social Responsibility

In 2016 SIMEST started a company-wide project to introduce the concept of Corporate Social Responsi-
bility'® (CSR) and to measure and improve its social responsibility.

Three stakeholders were chosen for the pilot project: People, the Environment and Society. Therefore the
Company chose 3 impact categories based on the sustainable reporting guidelines provided by the Glo-
bal Reporting Initiative:'® Social, Environmental and Economic; several indicators were selected for each
category, measuring the changes that occurred between 2015 and 2016.

“PEOPLE” STAKEHOLDER

GRI category: Social

EMPLOYMENT

During the year, SIMEST continued to hire, adding 4 new employees, and attended recruiting and career
days at the main universities in Rome and Milan.

As to insurance coverage for employees, the health insurance offered by SIMEST to its permanent em-
ployees provides greater coverage than indicated in the national collective bargaining agreements. It has
also increased the amount allocated for education grants for the children of middle management and
non-managerial employees by 18% over 2015, above that provided for in the national collective bargaining
agreements.

18 Definition of new metrics that enable companies to become more sustainable and contribute to economic sustaina-
bility as a whole. CSR focuses on environmental, humanitarian and social dimensions, contributing to defining proce-
dures and obligations for the achievement of economic results.

19 The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) is a non-profit entity founded to provide sustainability reporting assistance to
organizations of any size, any industry and in any country.
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In 2016 SIMEST organized, for the first time, a program targeted at children of employees attending the
4th and 5th years of high school to prepare them for the world of work. In September, it introduced a
contribution towards the costs of nursery school for children 0 to 3 years old (annual registration fees and
monthly attendance fees).

Employees with at least one year of service can apply to SIMEST for low-interest loans and mortgages to
purchase or renovate a primary residence.

To promote participation in sports, starting from July 2016 SIMEST offers support to its employees who
practice running, provided they possess a certificate of fitness to engage in competitive sports and are
members of a running organization.

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
SIMEST increased the amount of training provided to employees from 3,300 hours in 2015 to 4,550 hours
in 2016. The average annual hours of training per employee rose from 20 in 2015 to over 46 in 2016.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

SIMEST conducts periodic monitoring of the working environment, where the Company physician admi-
nisters a special questionnaire (inserted in the guidelines by INAIL) during Company-sponsored health
check-ups.

GRI category: Economic
SIMEST participates in a supplementary pension fund, contributed to by the employee with a match by
SIMEST.

“ENVIRONMENT” STAKEHOLDER
GRI category: Environmental

MATERIALS AND PAPER

There was a 36% reduction in the consumption of non-renewable resources compared with 2015, while the
use of recyclable materials was cut by 28%. Moreover there was a 3% increase in the ratio of recyclable
materials with a lesser environmental impact.

2016 SIMEST PROFILES

IMI FABI from Lombardy beco

leader in Brazil’s talc industry
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As to paper use, in 2016 the Company reduced its consumption of printed copies of magazines and new-
spapers and reported a further decrease of around 37% in the consumption of paper for printed materials
and publications.

ENERGY
Total internal energy consumption decreased by around 9% between 2015 and 2016.

WATER
The total volume of water withdrawn in cubic meters for the year went from 2,901 m3 in 2015 to 3,809 m?3
in 2016.

TRANSPORT

CO: emissions for business travel,2° calculated based on kilometers travelled, went from 100 tonnes in
2015 to 156 tonnes in 2016, as a result of the increased commercial presence involved in providing support
for international expansion and exports. However, the environmental impact was reduced in terms of the
ratio of tonnes of CO: to kilometers traveled owing to the better mix of transport methods.

“SOCIETY” STAKEHOLDER

GRI category: Economic

With regard to donations to non-profit associations, at the end of the year SIMEST holds a lottery among
its employees, the proceeds of which are donated to charity with a matching donation made by the Com-
pany.

In 2016 the Company awarded scholarships to high school students through the Ministry of Education
project “Fuoriclasse della Scuola” and contributed to the Leonardo Prize. Over the year SIMEST conferred
the SIMEST Prize, through the Leonardo Committee, for the best university thesis on the topic of interna-
tionalization.

20 The impacts were calculated by multiplying the kilometers traveled by the conversation factors taken from the site ht-
tps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-reporting-conversion-factors-2016. The kilometers were
calculated using travel agency reports. The increase in the use of trains in Italy (considering that short-distance flights
produced higher CO, emissions) meant that the impact was lessened without reducing activity.

e, ——

We took part in the group capital increase, supporting it in the acquisition of @
local competitor, thanks to which it has become the leading operator in the-region.

-
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10. Performance and financial
position

The financial position and performance of SIMEST at December 31, 2016 is analyzed below. In order to
make the results easier to understand, the balance sheet and income statement have been reclassified on
the basis of operational criteria.

10.1 Reclassified balance sheet

The assets from the reclassified balance sheet at December 31 can be grouped into the following aggregates:

(€ millions)
Assets 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Cash and cash equivalents 041 041
Financial assets held for trading 1.7 0.4
Financial assets available for sale 5.2 5.2
Receivables for equity investments 505.7 480.0
Other financial receivables a7 4.7
Property, plant and equipment 0.2 0.2
Intangible assets 0.6 0.3
Tax assets 3.4 4.6
Other assets 9.9 10.2
TOTAL ASSETS 531.5 505.5

As at December 31, 2016, total assets amounted to €531.5 million (€505.5 million at December 31, 2015),
increasing of about €26 million from the prior year.

The change in assets mainly involved the increase in “receivables for equity investments”, which came to
€505.7 million (€480.0 million at December 31, 2015). This is the main component of assets, accounting
for 95% of the total. The aggregate includes €483.6 million (€461.6 million at the end of 2015) in paid-in
equity investments net of any value adjustments. The increase of €22 million in the total value of this item
is mainly the net effect of payments (€100.2 million), receipts (€68.6 million), and value adjustments and
other changes (€9.6 million) recognized in 2016. As a result of application of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the allocation of these amounts to “receivables for equity investments” takes
account of the nature of SIMEST’s operations in assisting ltalian partners for a specified period of time
and the fact that these partners are required to repurchase the equity investments at the end of that pe-
riod treating them as equivalent to a loan to the partners even though they relate to equity investments.
“Receivables for equity investments” also include €17.4 million (€18.4 million at the end of 2015) in respect
of receivables from the various partners for the fees related to activities connected with the equity invest-
ments.
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The carrying amount of “receivables for equity investments” differs from the total value of the related
portfolio specified above because it is reduced by the amount of payments on account in respect of sales
to be completed and amounts not yet paid on investments made.

“Financial assets available for sale” amounted to €5.2 million at December 31, 2016, unchanged from the
prior year, and represent the interest in FINEST (which is not an associate).

“Other assets”, totaling €9.9 million (€10.2 million at December 31, 2015) mainly includes trade receivables
in respect of the agreement to manage the various public funds in the amount of €8.5 million (€9.2 million
at December 31, 2015) and advances to suppliers in the amount of €0.6 million (€0.5 million at December
31, 2015).

“Tax assets” totaled €3.4 million (€4.6 million at December 31, 2015), of which €2.6 million in deferred
tax assets recognized in respect of income components that will become taxable in future periods; €0.5
million for current taxes related to the application for a refund of IRAP in accordance with Article 2 of
Decree Law 201/2011; and over €0.3 million (€1.4 million at December 31, 2015) for payments on account
of corporate income taxes in 2016.

The liabilities from the reclassified balance sheet at December 31 can be grouped into the following ag-
gregates:

(€ millions)
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Borrowings 196.1 175.8
Financial liabilities held for trading 01 0.9
Other liabilities and tax liabilities 6.8 7.5
Employee termination benefits 34 3.5
Provisions for risks and charges 17 21
Shareholders’ equity 323.7 315.7
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 531.5 505.5

On the other side of the balance sheet, “borrowings” totaled €196.1 million at December 31, 2016 (€175.8
million at December 31, 2015). The item represents drawings on loans and lines of credit granted by CDP
and banks that are SIMEST shareholders. New borrowings were undertaken to support net outlays and
the related expansion of the investment portfolio.

“Financial liabilities held for trading”, amounting to €0.1 million (€0.9 million at December 31, 2015), inclu-
des the fair value measurement of one financial instrument used to hedge the interest-rate risk on debt.
“Other liabilities” and “tax liabilities” totaled €6.8 million (€7.5 million at December 31, 2015) and mainly
includes trade payables in the amount of €1.7 million (€2.0 million at December 31, 2015) and amounts
payable to employees and related contribution and tax liabilities in the amount of €1.6 million (€4.0 mil-
lion at December 31, 2015), as well as the IRES tax payables due to Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti
Spa for joining the tax consolidation mechanism (€2.4 million).

“Employee termination benefits” came to €3.1 million (€3.5 million at December 31, 2015), representing
amounts due to employees under specific legislation and collective bargaining agreements at December
31, 2016. The item has been recognized in accordance with IAS 19.

“Provisions for risks and charges” amounted to €1.7 million (€2.1 million at December 31, 2015) and repre-
sent provisions for potential liabilities, at current values, in respect of disputes with third parties and with
employees and other costs related to employees.

Shareholders’ equity amounted to €323.7 million at December 31, 2016 (€315.7 million at December 31,
2015), equal to about 60% of total liabilities. It comprises “share capital”, the “share premium reserve”,
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other “reserves” (including the first-time adoption, or “FTA”, reserve), and “net profit” for 2016. “Reserves”
totaled €145.9 million at December 31, 2015 (€145.1 million at December 31, 2015), and represent about
45% of total equity.

10.2 Reclassified income statement

The following analysis of SIMEST’s performance is based on the income statement that has been reclas-
sified on the basis of operational criteria, specifically:

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Income from equity investments 27,361 29,101
Interest and similar expense (2,351) (2,919)
Fee and commission income 16,381 18,746
Net gain (loss) on trading activities 3,914 2,574
Other financial income 43 52
Gross income 45,348 47,556
Net impairment adjustments of loans (6,009) (12,777)
Administrative expenses and other operating (expense)/income (21,947) (22,671)
Operating income 17,393 12,107
Net provisions for risks and charges - (780)
Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (397) (194)
Profit (loss) before tax 16,996 11,133
Income tax for the period (5,672) (6,881)
Net profit (loss) for the period 11,323 4,253

In terms of financial performance, in 2016 SIMEST posted a net profit of €11.3 million (€4.3 million in 2015)
after provisions for taxes (both current and deferred) of €5.7 million. The net profit has doubled from 2015
due to lower writedowns on equity investments and the containment of overhead costs.

On the revenue side, “income from equity investments” totaled €27.4 million (€29.1 million in 2015). It
includes fees, interest on deferred payments and default interest on receivables for equity investments.
The average annual return on the equity investment portfolio reached about 5.9% (6.2% in 2015), with the
reduction in income resulting from new equity investments made at current market terms after having
assigned equity investments with higher rates of return.

“Interest and similar expense” came to €2.4 million (€2.9 million in 2015) and regards interest expense on
financial debt and includes the expense for differences on financial instruments. The average cost of debt
for 2016, including the effect of hedging using financial instruments, came to around 1.5% (1.9% for 2015).
This result was obtained despite the lengthening of the average maturity of debts, by expanding the range
of bank counterparties and more actively managing the instruments used.
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“Fee and commission income” came to €16.4 million (€18.7 million in 2015) and mainly concerns fees recei-
ved for management of the Venture Capital Fund, the Law 394/81 Fund, the Sustainable Growth Fund, the
Law 295/73 Fund and the Start-Up Fund. The decrease in management fees on these public funds compa-
red with the previous year was due to more efficient financial management and the lack of non-recurring
expenses recognized during the previous year.

The “net gain on trading activities” came to €3.9 million (€2.6 million in 2015) and is comprised of gains
on the assignment and measurement of operations in the portfolio (€3.1 million) and gains on the measu-
rement of financial instruments (€0.8 million). Including the gains on and measurements of equity invest-
ments, the average return on equity investments amounted to 6.6%, unchanged from 2015.

As a result, “gross income” for 2016 comes to €45.3 million (€47.6 million in 2015), taking account of the
reduction in income from outlays in respect of equity investments and fee and commission income, partly
offset by the increase in gains on the assignment and measurement of receivables, compared with the
previous year, due to an improvement in the average cost of debt.

“Net impairment adjustments of loans” showed net impairment losses of €6.0 million (€12.8 million in
2015), reflecting the individual and collective impairment of loans to customers recognized in accordance
with IAS 39. This amounts to about 1% of the overall equity investment portfolio.

“Administrative expenses” (€21.9 million) decreased from the previous year (€22.7 million), due to the lack
of non-recurring expenses recognized during the previous year related to early-retirement incentives. The
overall reduction in expenses compared with 2015 and is also correlated with lower costs incurred in 2016
per for the management of programs for the Ministry of Economic Development, with no corresponding
revenue recognized under “fee and commission income”.

As a result, operating income for 2016 came to €17.4 million, up from the €12.1 million at the end of 2015.
No “net provisions for risks and charges” were recognized in 2016 (€0.8 million in 2015), while “net adjust-
ments of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets” — depreciation of operating assets — came
to €0.4 million (€0.2 million in 2015).

Accordingly, “profit before tax” came to €17.0 million (€11.1 million in 2015) as a result of the factors descri-
bed above.
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11. Outlook for operations

The 2017 budget, approved in December, assumes that the volume of funds mobilized and managed will
increase, with a significant contribution made by export credit support activities, subject to the alloca-
tion of the necessary public funds, and by subsidized financing for internationalization, thanks to the full
effectiveness of the changes introduced to simplify the process, make it more accessible to companies
and reduce response times. Regarding equity investments, the volume of funds mobilized is expected to
increase substantially, in part owing to the commercial synergies developed with SACE Spa.

As far as the balance sheet is concerned, we expect an increase in receivables for equity investments,
thanks to the expected flow of new equity investments, and a correlated increase in borrowing, with a
progressive matching of lending and funding maturities. Expected comprehensive income for 2017 should
essentially be in line with the performance posted in 2016, despite expected non-recurring charges.
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We subscribed a capital increase in Consorzio Casalasco del Pomodoro, the Itqla-n
leader in growing and canning tomatoes, to support a broad investment prd’gram tf,
develop high-potential foreign markets. -
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Form and content

of the financial
statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016

The financial statements at December 31, 2016 were prepared in accordance with the regulations in force
and consist of:

e Balance sheet

e Income statement

e Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

e Statement of comprehensive income

e Statement of cash flows

e Notes to the financial statements

Contents of the notes to the financial statements:

INTRODUCTION

- Information on the Company
- General basis of preparation
I. Declaration of conformity with international accounting standards
Il. Basis of preparation
Ill. New accounting standards endorsed and in force at December 31, 2016 and those not
yet in force
IV. Use of estimates and judgments

MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Financial assets held for trading
- Financial assets available for sale
- Receivables for equity investments
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangible assets
- Financial liabilities held for trading
- Current and deferred taxes
- Employee termination benefits
- Provisions for risk and charges
- Income from equity investments and interest expense
- Fees and commissions
- Costs

INFORMATION ON THE BALANCE SHEET
INFORMATION ON THE INCOME STATEMENT
INFORMATION ON RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER INFORMATION
- Financial highlights of the company that exercises management and coordination
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After Hong Kong, CIMMAGINE RITR

from Bologna turns the focus on PA

On the heels of a successful partnership in the Asian market, we alsg
the Oscar and Leone d’Oro-winning Italian leader in film restoratig
the French market by acquiring a stake in its subsidiary L'lmageé

Financial statements at December 31, 2016

Financial statements
at December 31, 2016

Balance sheet

Income statement

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of cash flows
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Balance sheet

(euros)

Assets Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Cash and cash equivalents A1 70,092 52,033
Financial assets held for trading A2 1,710,674 439,974
Financial assets available for sale A3 5,164,569 5,164,569
Receivables for equity investments A4 505,725,054 480,034,847
Other financial receivables A.5 4,727,329 4,659,721
Property, plant and equipment A.6 205,796 174,810
Intangible assets A7 566,534 273,921
Tax assets A.8 3,424,495 4,568,247
a) current 812,548 1,857,575
b) deferred 2,611,947 2,710,672
Other assets A9 9,858,920 10,168,957
Total assets 531,453,463 505,537,079
(euros)

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Borrowings P1 196,060,759 175,840,281
Financial liabilities held for trading P.2 88,654 874,324
Other liabilities P.3 6,798,995 7,467,146
Employee termination benefits P4 3,121,725 3,513,978
Tax liabilities P.5 17,472 -
a) current - -
b) deferred 17,472 -
Provisions for risks and charges P.6 1,715,561 2,137,985
b) other provisions 1,715,561 2,137,985
Share capital P.7 164,646,232 164,646,232
Share premium reserve P.8 1,735,551 1,735,551
Reserves P.9 145,945,088 145,068,663
- of which FTA reserve 63,526,684 63,526,684
Net profit (loss) for the period (+/-) P.10 11,323,427 4,252,919
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 531,453,463 505,537,079
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(euros)

Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Income from equity investments Cia 27,360,772 29,101,326
Interest and similar expense Cc.2 (1,535,065) (2,210,470)
Fee and commission income C.3 16,380,992 18,746,093
Net gain (loss) on trading activities Ca 3,098,381 1,866,608
Other financial income C.5 43,204 52,401
Gross income 45,348,284 47,555,958
Net impairment adjustments of loans C.6 (6,008,716) (12,777,491)
Administrative expenses C7 (21,271,680) (21,914,911)
a) personnel expenses (14,125,808) (15,233,116)
b) other administrative expenses (7,145,872) (6,681,795)
Other operating (expenses)/income oX:] (17,623) 12,875
Operating income 18,050,265 12,876,431
Net provisions for risks and charges Cc.9 (657,332) (1,548,995)
Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment C.10 (54,001) (41,900)
Net adjustments of intangible assets C1 (343,039) (152,048)
Profit (Loss) before tax 16,995,893 11,133,488
Income tax for the period ca2 (5,672,466) (6,880,569)
Net profit (loss) for the period 11,323,427 4,252,919
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Statement of comprehensive income

(euros)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Net profit (loss) for the period 11,323,427 4,252,919
Other comprehensive income net of taxes not recyclable
to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges
Financial assets available for sale
Non-current assets held for sale
Defined-benefit plans (210,221) 221,167
Total other comprehensive income net of taxes (210,221) 221,167
Comprehensive income 11,113,206 4,474,086
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Statement of cash flows (indirect method)

Financial statements at December 31, 2016

(euros)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Operations (1,272,501) (7,831,555)
- Net profit (loss) for the period (+/-) 11,323,427 4,252 919
- Gain (Losses) on financial assets held for trading and on financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (-/+) (2,056,371) (1,420,896)
- Income, fees and commissions not yet received (-) (24,136,469) (25,184,012)
- Net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) 6,666,540 12,777,491
- Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 397,040 193,948
- Net provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues (+/-) 6,533,332 1,548,995
2. Net cash flows from/used in financial assets (7,977,848) 5,766,389
- Receivables for equity investments (16,099,982) (988,992)
- Other financial receivables (67,608) (123,825)
- Other current assets 8,189,742 6,879,206
3. Net cash flows from/used in financial liabilities (7,065,157) 1,758,214
- Other current liabilities (7,065,157) 1,758,214
Net cash flows from/used in operating activities (16,315,506) (306,952)
B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Cash flows from - -
- Sales of property, plant and equipment - -
- Sales of intangible assets - -
2. Cash flows used in (720,639) (305,819)
- Purchases of property, plant and equipment (84,987) (70,895)
- Purchases of intangible assets (635,652) (234,924)
Net cash flows from/used in investment activities (720,639) (305,819)
C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Issues/purchases of treasury shares (payment/repayment of share capital and reserves) - -
- Dividend distribution and allocations (3,166,274) (3,166,274)
Net cash flows from/used in financing activities (3,166,274) (3,166,274)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (20,202,419) (3,779,045)

RECONCILIATION
Initial cash and cash equivalents/(financial payables)

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(175,788,248)
(20,202,419)

(172,009,203)
(3,779,045)

Final cash and cash equivalents/(financial payables)

(195,990,667)

(175,788,248)
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Notes to the financial statements

Introduction

Information on the Company
For information on the Company please refer to the report on operations.

General basis of preparation

I. Declaration of conformity with international accounting standards

The financial statements of SIMEST have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting
Standards (IASs) and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) endorsed by the European
Commission as established by Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002.

Starting from 2015 SIMEST has exercised the option provided for by Legislative Decree 38 of January 28,
2005 (IAS Decree), as amended by Decree Law 91/2014 (Enhancing Competitiveness Decree), to prepare
its financial statements in accordance with the international accounting standards (IASs/IFRSs) which
extends the option to all companies other than those for which application of the IASs/IFRSs is mandatory
or those permitted to prepare condensed financial statements pursuant to Art. 2435-bis of the Italian Civil
Code (Art. 4(6) of Legislative Decree 38/2005).

Il. Basis of preparation

SIMEST’s financial statements consist of the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of chan-
ges in shareholders’ equity, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the
notes to the financial statements, accompanied by the report on operations prepared by the Board of
Directors.

The notes to the financial statements provide all the information required by applicable regulations as
well as any supplementary information judged necessary to provide a true and fair representation of the
Company. The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that SIMEST will remain a
going concern and that there are no doubts as to whether the Company will remain in operation.

The financial statements and accompanying notes set out the figures for the present period as well as the
comparative figures at December 31, 2015.

The financial statements use the euro as the reporting currency and are expressed in euros, while unless
otherwise indicated the figures in the notes to the financial statements are expressed in thousands of
euros.

I1l. New accounting standards endorsed and in force at December 31, 2016 and those not yet in force
The new international accounting standards or amendments to existing standards, along with the endor-
sing European Commission regulations, for which application is mandatory starting from January 1, 2016
are:

e Regulation 28/2015: Amendments to IFRS 2-Share-based Payment, IFRS 3-Business Combinations, IFRS
8-Operating Segments, IAS 16-Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 24-Related Party Disclosures, and
IAS 38-Intangible assets;

e Regulation 29/2015: Amendments to IAS 19-Employee Benefits;

e Regulation 2113/2015: Amendments to IAS 16-Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41-Agriculture;

e Regulation 2173/2015: Amendments to IFRS 11-Joint Arrangements;

e Regulation 2231/2015: Amendments to IAS 16-Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38-Intangible
assets;

e Regulation 2343/2015: Amendments to IFRS 5-Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
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Operations, IFRS 7-Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19-Employee Benefits and IAS 34-Interim
Financial Reporting;

e Regulation 2406/2015: Amendments to IAS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements;

e Regulation 2441/2015: Amendments to IAS 27-Separate Financial Statements;

® Regulation 1703/2016: Amendments to IFRS 10-Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12-Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28-Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

Furthermore, in 2014 the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 15-Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9-Financial Instruments, both still in the process of obtaining the en-
dorsement of the European Commission. With IFRS 9 the IASB has completed (with the exception of the
rules on macro-hedging) the process of introducing the new accounting standard for financial instrumen-
ts; it will enter into force starting from January 1, 2018.

IV. Use of estimates and judgments

Accounting estimates

In applying the international accounting standards in the preparation of its financial statements, the
Company is required to formulate reasonable and realistic estimates of certain items, based upon the
information known at the time the estimates are made, that affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities and to provide disclosures on contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date, as well as
the amount of revenues and costs for the period. Any changes to the conditions upon which judgments,
assumptions and estimates are based can also have an impact on the subsequent results.

The estimates made as of the reporting date relate mainly to financial assets connected to receivables for
equity investments to verify whether there is evidence indicating that the value of such assets has suffered
a reduction, as well as to current and deferred taxes.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset (or a liability) can be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction
between parties with a reasonable level of knowledge about market conditions and the material circum-
stances of the object of the exchange.

In the definition of fair value a key assumption is that an entity is fully operational and does not have an
urgent need to liquidate or significantly reduce a position. Among other factors, the fair value of an in-
strument reflects its credit quality as it incorporates the default risk associated with the counterparty or
the issuer.

There are three possible ways of determining the fair value of financial instruments:

- in the case of instruments quoted on active markets, prices on financial markets are used (Level 1);

- in the case of instruments not quoted on active markets, recourse is made, where possible, to valuation
techniques that use observable market parameters other than quoted prices for the instrument but con-
nected with its fair value by non-arbitrage relationships (Level 2);

- in other cases, recourse is made to internal valuation techniques that also use as inputs parameters that
are not observable on the market and thus are inevitably subjective to some degree (Level 3).

A market is considered active if prices are readily and regularly available from regulated markets, orga-
nized trading facilities, brokers, intermediaries, pricing services, etc. and if those prices can reasonably
be considered to be representative of actual and regular market transactions carried out close to the
valuation date.

In the case of financial instruments that are not quoted on active markets, valuation using Level 2 inputs
requires the use of valuation techniques that process market parameters at different levels of complexity.
For example, valuation techniques may, in addition to interpolations and extrapolations, involve the spe-
cification of stochastic processes that represent market dynamics and the use of simulations or other
numerical techniques to determine the fair value of the instruments being measured.
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In selecting the valuation techniques to be used in Level 2 measurements, the Company takes account of

the following criteria:

e simpler valuation techniques are preferred to more complex techniques, all other conditions being equal
and as long as they represent all of the relevant characteristics of the product, ensuring that they are
reasonably in line with the practices and results of other sector operators;

e valuation techniques are applied consistently over time to uniform categories of instruments, unless
objective grounds for replacement of the technique should emerge;

e all other conditions being equal, preference is given to standard models whose mathematical structure
and implementing procedures are familiar to practitioners and integrated into the Company’s corporate
systems.

The selection of market parameters as inputs for Level 2 valuations is carried out on the basis of non-ar-

bitrage relationships or comparative relationships that define the fair value of the financial instrument

being measured as the relative fair value compared with that of financial instruments quoted on active
markets.

In some cases, in determining fair value it is necessary to have recourse to valuation techniques that

call for inputs that cannot be drawn directly from observable market variables, such as statistical or

“expert-based” estimates by the party performing the valuation (Level 3).

Level 3 valuation techniques are also applied consistently over time to uniform categories of instruments,

unless objective grounds for their replacement should emerge.

Similarly, parameters that cannot be drawn directly from observable market variables are applied consi-

stently over time.

Main accounting policies

The following pages provide a description of the accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial
statements of SIMEST at December 31, 2016.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at fair value through profit or loss. Cash refers to cash on hand and
the balance on accounts held with banks returning market rates. The amount of the item is increased by
the interest accrued on cash and cash equivalents, even if not yet liquidated.

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading includes all financial assets, regardless of form, held for the purpose

of generating profits over the short term and derivatives with a positive value, except for those held for

hedging purposes.

The portfolio contains derivatives with a positive value, resulting from the separation of derivatives em-

bedded in contracts with partner companies represented by contractual clauses that specify the redemp-

tion value of shares held by SIMEST in investee companies. These derivatives are separated from the host

contract and classified in this portfolio.

Financial assets held for trading have the following characteristics:

e they are acquired for the purpose of reselling them in the near term;

e they are a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

e they are derivatives (with the exception of derivatives that are designated as effective hedging instru-
ments).

Reclassification to other categories of financial asset is not permitted except in the event of unusual circu-
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mstances that are unlikely to recur in the short term. In these cases, debt and equity securities no longer
held for trading may be reclassified to other categories envisaged by IAS 39 where the requirements for
such recognition have been met. The transfer value is given by the fair value at the time of the reclassifi-
cation.

Financial assets are initially recognized on the settlement date for debt and equity securities and at the
signing date for derivative contracts. Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at fair value
in the balance sheet, net of transaction costs or income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with chan-
ges in value recognized in profit or loss. For financial instruments listed on active markets, the fair value is
determined on the basis of the market price. In the absence of an active market, fair value is determined
using the price of listed instruments with similar features as well as the results of pricing models (based
mainly on objective financial variables).

Derivatives contracts are recognized under assets if their fair value is positive and under liabilities if their
fair value is negative.

Financial assets held for trading are derecognized when payment is received, when the contractual rights
to the cash flows expire or when a sale transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership to a third party.
Conversely, when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are retai-
ned, the asset continues to be recognized on the balance sheet even if legal title has been transferred.
The gains and losses on sale or redemption and unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in
the fair value of the trading portfolio are reported under “Net gain (loss) on trading activities”. The inco-
me components are recognized based on the results of the measurement of the financial assets held for
trading.

Financial assets available for sale

This category includes financial assets that are not classified as “loans and receivables”, “financial assets
held to maturity”, “financial assets held for trading” or “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.
Debt securities available for sale may be reclassified to “financial assets held to maturity” or to “loans and
receivables” (provided that the Company plans to hold them for the foreseeable future). The transfer value
is given by the fair value at the time of the reclassification.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognized on the settlement date for debt and equity se-
curities and on the disbursement date in the case of loans. The financial assets are initially recognized
at fair value, which generally equals the amount paid, in addition to any directly attributable transaction
costs, if material and determinable.

Following initial recognition, financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value with changes in
value being recognized in a special equity reserve, the effects of which for the period are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income. For debt securities the value corresponding to the amortized cost is
recognized in profit or loss. Certain equity securities not listed on active markets, the fair value of which
cannot be reliably determined or verified, are carried at cost and written down in the event of impairment
losses. The values recognized in the equity reserve are reversed to profit or loss upon disposal of the asset
or in the event of impairment. Where impairment is found, the amount of the loss is measured as the diffe-
rence between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. Where the reasons for the impairment
should cease to obtain, writebacks are recognized in profit or loss for debt securities and in equity in the
case of equity instruments. The amount of the writeback shall not in any event exceed the amortized cost
that the instrument would have had in the absence of the prior writedown.

The interest on debt securities recognized in this category is calculated using the effective interest rate
method and is recognized through profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale capital instruments are recognized through profit or loss when the right to
receive payment accrues.
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Receivables for equity investments

The term “receivables” refers to the portfolio of financial instruments, including debt securities, not quo-
ted on active markets, that IAS 39 refers to as “loans and receivables” and that give rise to the right to
future cash flows.

In SIMEST’s financial statements this aggregate includes receivables from partner companies arising
from investments in investee companies.

Specifically, existing transactions between SIMEST, the partner companies and investee companies re-
present a financial asset in the form of a linked transaction for which SIMEST has the right to receive a
sum of money (determinable by contract and no less than the amount disbursed) from the partner com-
pany, thereby substantiating the relationship with the partner within the context of the linked transaction.
These transactions, regardless of their legal form, are classified as “loans and receivables”, as they meet
the requirements set out in IAS 39 for such classification.

Receivables are recognized upon the execution of the contract, i.e. with the acquisition of an unconditio-
nal right to payment of an agreed amount. They are initially recognized at fair value, equal to the amount
disbursed, including transaction costs and fees and commissions directly attributable to the transaction.
If the net amount disbursed is not equal to its fair value due to the application of an interest rate that is
lower than the market rate or the rate normally applied to similar loans, the asset is initially measured by
discounting the expected future cash flows using an appropriate rate.

The receivables portfolio undergoes testing for impairment when, subsequent to initial recognition, events
have occurred that could give rise to objective evidence of impairment.

Receivables for which no objective evidence of impairment has been found undergo collective impairment
testing. This testing is performed on groups of positions with uniform credit risk profiles and the associa-
ted loss rates are estimated based on historic rates and other observable factors at the measurement
date, making it possible to estimate the impairment for each group of receivables. The country risk of the
counterparty is taken into account in measuring receivables. Collective value adjustments are taken to
profit or loss.

The key to determining the value of the future cash flows is identifying the estimated collections (expected
cash flows), the related timing, and the discount rate to be applied.

Individual and collective impairment is recognized through a writedown of the carrying amount based
upon the criteria indicated above. Where the reasons for the impairment should cease to obtain or when
a recovery occurs that exceeds the writedown originally taken, a writeback in recognized in profit or loss
under net impairment adjustments of loans.

Property, plant and equipment

“Property, plant and equipment” includes all non-current tangible assets used in operations. Property,
plant and equipment are recognized at purchase cost including incidental expenses. The carrying amount
represents the book value of the assets net of depreciation, which is calculated using the rates that are
felt to reflect the remaining useful economic lives of each asset. Newly acquired assets are depreciated
as from the period in which they enter service. Assets whose use or nature classifies them as capital equi-
pment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their remaining useful lives. Maintenance and repair
costs that do not increase the utility or useful lives of assets are charged directly to profit or loss for the
year.

Intangible assets
“Intangible assets” are governed by IAS 38. Intangible assets are recognized at purchase or development

cost including incidental expenses and are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which are reasses-
sed at the end of each year in order to verify the appropriateness of the estimates. An intangible asset is
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only recognized in the balance sheet under the following conditions:

e the Company can control the future economic benefits generated by the asset;

e it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the Company;

e the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are therefore derecognized when future economic benefits are no longer expected or
when sold. Costs incurred for the purchase and development of software by third parties are amortized
over the residual useful lives of the assets, which is no greater than three years.

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the date of signing or at the date of issue at a value equal to
the cost corresponding to the fair value of the instrument. The item includes the negative value of trading
derivatives as well as the negative value of derivatives embedded in compound contracts but not strictly
correlated with them. All financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value, with differences
recognized through profit or loss. Financial liabilities held for trading are derecognized when the con-
tractual rights to the cash flows expire or a sale transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership to a third

party.
Current and deferred taxes

Tax assets and liabilities are classified in the balance sheet under “Tax assets” and “Tax liabilities”. The
accounting entries current and deferred taxation include: i) current tax assets, consisting of tax paid in ad-
vance and receivables for withholding taxes incurred; ii) current tax liabilities, consisting of tax payables
to be settled according to applicable tax regulations; iii) deferred tax assets, consisting of the amounts of
tax recoverable in future years in view of temporarily deductible differences; and iv) deferred tax liabili-
ties, consisting of payables for tax to be paid in future periods as a result of taxable temporary differen-
ces. Current taxes, consisting of corporate income tax (IRES) and the regional tax on business activities
(IRAP), are recognized on an accruals basis using a realistic estimate of the negative and positive tax
components for the year and are calculated on the basis of the tax rates currently in force, amounting,
for the year 2016, to 27.5% for the IRES tax and 5.57% for the IRAP tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized based on the tax rate that, under the legislation in force at the reporting date, is expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, and are periodically reviewed to
take account of any changes in legislation. The term “deferred tax” refers, in particular, to the recogni-
tion, in terms of tax, of the temporary differences between the value assigned to the asset or liability for
statutory accounting purposes and the corresponding value for tax purposes. Deferred taxes are recogni-
zed: i) under tax assets, if they relate to deductible temporary differences, which means the differences
between statutory and tax values that will give rise to deductible amounts in future periods, to the extent
that they are likely to be recovered; ii) under tax liabilities, if they relate to taxable temporary differences
representing liabilities because they relate to accounting entries that will become taxable in future tax
periods. More specifically, with respect to IRES, as a result of joining the CDP Group’s tax consolidation
mechanism and in accordance with the Consolidation Rules and the prevailing legal theory and practices,
the Company calculated its “potential” charge, recognizing a payable to the consolidating entity that, in
accordance with the new scheme, is the only entity obliged to make tax payments to the tax authority.

Employee termination benefits
Employee termination benefits (trattamento di fine rapporto — TFR) cover the entire amount of the lia-

bilities towards employees accrued at the end of the period, in accordance with the law (Art. 2120 of
the Italian Civil Code) and applicable labor agreements. In accordance with IAS 19, TFR is considered

s
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a “defined-benefit plan” and, therefore, at the reference date represents the accumulating obligation
towards employees as the present value of expected future payments with respect to benefits accrued in
the current year and the present value of future payments arising from benefits accrued in previous years.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are only recognized to cover liabilities of a determinate nature, the exi-

stence of which is certain or probable, but whose amount or timing is uncertain at the end of the period.

Therefore a provision is made under “Provisions for risk and charges” only when:

e there is a present legal or constructive obligation resulting from a past event;

e it is probable that performance of the obligation is likely to be onerous, that is, an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

e a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are used only to discharge the obligations for which they were originally recognized.

Income from equity investments and interest expense

Income from equity investments and interest expense are recognized in the income statement on a pro
rata temporis basis for all instruments using an agreed interest rate or the effective interest rate, in the
case of the application of the amortized cost.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are recognized in the income statement on an accruals basis. This excludes fees
and commissions considered when calculating amortized cost for the purpose of determining the effecti-
ve interest rate, which are recognized under interest.

Costs

Costs are recognized on an accrual basis.
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Information on the balance sheet

ASSETS
A.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Bank accounts 64 45
Cash on hand 6 7
Total 70 52

The item represents cash deposited in bank accounts at December 31, 2016, including interest income
credited by banks, and cash on hand, in both euros and foreign currencies.

A.2 Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading: composition by debtor

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
A. On-balance-sheet assets
1. Debt securities
2. Equity securities
3. Units in collective investment undertakings
4. Loans
Total A
B. Derivatives
a) Banks
- at fair value
b) Customers 1,711 440
- at fair value 1,711 440
Total B 1,711 440
Total (A+B) 1,711 440

The item shows the mark-to-market valuation at December 31 of derivatives relating to put/call options on
receivables for equity investments.
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Financial assets held for trading: composition by type Financial assets available for sale: composition by type
(€ thousands) (€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A. On-balance-sheet assets 1. Debt securities
1. Debt securities 1.1 Structured securities
2. Equity securities 1.2 Other debt securities
3. Units in collective investment 2. Equity securities 5,165 5,165
undertakings 2.1 At fair value
4. Loans 2.2 Carried at cost 5,165 5,165
Total A 3. Units in collective investment
undertakings
B. Derivatives 4. Loans
1. Financial derivatives 1,711 440 Total 5,165 5,165
11 Trading
1.2 Associated with the fair value option
1.3 Other 71 440 Change for the period
2. Credit derivatives (€ thousands)
Total B 1,711 440
Total (A+B) 1711 440 Opening balance at 31/12/2015 5,165
Increases
Decreases
. . . Closing balance at 31/12/2016 5,165
A.3 Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale
(€ thousands)
1122016 $1/12/2015 A.4 Receivables for equity investments
Equity interests paid up 5165 5165 Receivables for equity investments: composition
(€ thousands)
Total 5,165 5,165
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
. L. L . . . . Receivables for equity investments 505.725 480.035
The item refers to the equity interest (not constituting an associate relationship) that SIMEST holds in 2 ’
FINEST Spa. Total 505,725 480,035

This item reports receivables arising in respect of equity investments.
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Receivables for equity investments: composition by type

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016
Impaired positions
Performing Acquired Other Total
Due from
a) Governments
b) Other public entities
c) Other 493,410 12,315 505,725
Total 493,410 12,315 505,725
Receivables for equity investments: by maturity
(€ thousands)
Upto3 Up to 12 Upto5 Beyond
Past due months months years 5 years Total
Receivables for equity investments 5,930 2,268 73,078 298,986 133,610 513,872
less:
Collective value adjustments X X e X X (8,147)
Total 505,725
A.5 Other financial receivables
Other financial receivables: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Mortgage loans to employees 4,261 4,190
Personal loans to employees 466 470
Total 4,727 4,660
The item refers to mortgage and personal loans disbursed to employees.
The breakdown by maturity is shown below:
(€ thousands)
Upto3 Up to 12 Upto5 More than
months months years 5 years Total
Receivables for mortgage loans to employees 76 225 1,155 2,805 4,261
Receivables for personal loans to employees 94 99 273 466
Total 4,727
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A.6 Property, plant and equipment

Operating property, plant and equipment: composition of assets carried at cost

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
1. Owned assets 206 175
a) land
b) buildings
¢) movables 91 71
d) electronic plant 115 104
e) other
2. Assets acquired under finance leases
a) land
b) buildings
c) movables
d) electronic plant
e) other
Total 206 175
Operating property, plant and equipment: change for the period
(€ thousands)
Movables Electronic plant Total
A. Opening gross balance 1,292 1,991 3,283
A1 Total net writedowns (1,221) (1,887) (3,108)
A.2 Opening net balance 71 104 175
B. Increases 40 45 85
B.1 Purchases 40 45 85
C. Decreases (20) (34) (54)
Ci1Sales
C.2 Depreciation (20) (34) (54)
D. Closing net balance 91 115 206
D Total net writedowns (1,241) (1,921) (3,162)
D.2 Closing gross balance 1,332 2,036 3,368

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at a rate determined in relation to the use of the assets
and their residual useful lives.
Purchases during the year mainly regarded IT system hardware and movables and furniture.
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A.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Software licenses 496 259
Headquarters renovation costs 70 14
Total 566 273

The item includes the costs for updating IT procedures used to manage Company operations.

Software costs and the costs incurred in respect of the business development plan are amortized on a

straight-line basis over three years.

Intangible assets: change for the period

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016
A. Opening balance 12,400
A Total net writedowns (12,127)
A.2 Opening net balance 273
B. Increases 636
B.1 Purchases 636
of which business combinations
C. Decreases (343)
C.1Sales
of which business combinations
C.2 Writedowns (343)
- Amortization (343)
- Impairment
+ Shareholders’ equity
+ Income statement
D. Closing net balance 566
D.1 Total net writedowns (12,470)
E. Closing gross balance 13,036
A.8 Tax assets
Deferred tax assets: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Deferred tax assets recognized in the income statement 2,612 2,711
- Provisions for risks and charges 1,797 1,926
- Writedowns of receivables 815 785
Deferred tax assets recognized in equity
Total 2,612 2,711
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Changes in deferred tax assets

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016
Opening balance 2,711
2. Increases
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognized during the period
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates
2.3 Other increases
2.4 Business combinations
3. Decreases (99)
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognized during the period (99)
a) reversals
b) writedowns for supervening non-recoverability
c) due to changes in accounting policies
d) other (99)
3.2 Reduction in tax rates
3.3 Other decreases
3.4 Business combinations
Closing balance 2,612
A.9 Other assets
Other assets: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Trade receivables and advances to public entities 9,049 9,231
Advances to suppliers 487 549
Advances to employees 1 9
Other trade receivables 76 a4
Other tax receivables 1 1
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 245 335
Total 9,859 10,169

Trade receivables and advances to public entities include receivables for fees and commissions earned for
managing the Law 295/73 Fund, the Law 394/81 Fund, the Sustainable Growth Fund, the Venture Capital

Fund and the Start-Up Fund.

Financial statements at December 31, 2016
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LIABILITIES
P Borrowings

Borrowings: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Due to banks 175,995 170,937
Due to Cassa depositi e prestiti 20,066 4,903
Total 196,061 175,840

This item refers to current bank account overdrafts and to the utilization of credit lines for covering cash
flow requirements in respect of equity investments.

Borrowings: distribution by maturity

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Borrowings repayable on demand 65,830 93,814
Term borrowings and borrowings repayable with notice 130,231 82,026
Total 196,061 175,840

“Borrowings repayable on demand” refers to bank current account overdrafts at the end of the year. The
carrying amount is equal to the nominal value and includes accrued fees.

“Term borrowings and borrowings repayable with notice” refers to the payable outstanding at the end of
the year in respect of credit lines. It includes the 6-year committed credit line from Cassa depositi e pre-
stiti in a pool with another credit institution.

P.2 Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities held for trading: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Interest rate derivatives 89 874
Total 89 874

This item refers to the period-end measurement of the fair value of one financial instrument held for tra-
ding obtained at the time to ensure greater matching of funding and lending, taking account of the need
to achieve financial balance in acquiring and disposing of equity investments.
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(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A. On-balance-sheet liabilities
1. Equity securities
2. Units in collective
investment undertakings
3. Loans
Total A
B. Derivatives
1. Financial derivatives 89 874
11 trading 89 874
2. Credit derivatives
2.1trading
2.3 other
Total B 89 874
Total (A+B) - 89 - 874 -
P.3 Other liabilities
Other liabilities: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Payables for amounts to be disbursed to employees 963 2,870
Trade payables and other items 2,373 3,467
Payables due to tax authorities 385 421
Payables due to social security institutions 679 709
Payables for IRES due to Group Parent Cassa depositi e Prestiti Spa
under the Group tax consolidation mechanism 2399
Total 6,799 7,467
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P.4 Employee termination benefits

Employee termination benefits: change for the period

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

A. Opening balance 3,514 3,793

B. Increases 275 56

B.1 Provisions for the period 65 56
B.2 Other increases 210

C. Decreases 667 335

C.1Benefit payments 667 14

C.2 Other decreases 221

D. Closing balance 3,122 3,514

Post-employment benefits are divided into two categories:

- defined-contribution plans, in which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a
fund). In this case the actuarial risk (that benefits are less than expected) and investment risk (that the
assets invested are not sufficient to generate the expected benefits) are borne by the employee;

- defined-benefit plans, in which the Company is obligated to pay out agreed benefits for employees in
service and those no longer in service, thereby essentially assuming the actuarial and investment risks
associated with the plan.

Accounting treatment of defined-contribution plans

The plan’s costs are recognized in profit or loss under “Personnel expenses”, without any consideration
of the present value of the obligation. From January 1, 2007 (the date of entry into force of the reforms
of supplementary pension scheme introduced by Legislative Decree 252 of 5 December 2005), for com-
panies with more than 50 employees, the portion of the employee termination benefit paid into pension
funds and the INPS Treasury Fund falls under the definition of “defined-contribution plan” without requi-
ring an actuarial valuation to be made. Conversely, the existing portion, which will continue to be held
by the Company until the final date of disbursement of the benefits to the employee, will continue to be
treated as a “defined-benefit plan”. Specifically, the recognition of interest from discounting and the distri-
butions made will affect this portion only.

Accounting treatment of defined-benefit plans

The cost recognized with respect to a defined-benefit plan must be recalculated, based on demographic,
statistical and salary movement assumptions. Specifically, the portion of the employee termination be-
nefits that remains with the Company, which falls under the definition of a defined-contribution plan, is
calculated based on the present value of the obligation accruing and accrued (respectively the present
value of expected future payments with respect to benefits accrued in the current year and the present
value of future payments arising from benefits accrued in previous years) using the projected unit credit
method. The costs of servicing the plan are recognized under “Personnel expenses”, while the actuarial
gains and losses are posted in the “Valuation reserves” in equity. The actuarial assessment is conducted in
accordance with the revised IAS 19, as amended by the IASB on June 16, 2011 and approved with Regula-
tion (EU) no. 475/2012 of June 5, 2012.
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In accordance with this standard, the following were calculated:

e past service liability: the present value calculated based on economic and financial parameters for
employee service (employee pension benefit payments) derived on the basis of past periods of service;

e service cost: the present value calculated based on demographic and financial parameters for service
accrued in the current period only;

e interest cost: the cost of liabilities arising from the passage of time, which is proportional to the interest
rate adopted in the valuations and to the amount of the liabilities from the previous year;

e actuarial (gains)/losses: these measure the change in the obligation during the period.

The following were the main actuarial assumptions made in calculating employee termination benefits:

Accounting treatment of defined-contribution plans and defined-benefit plans

Economic and financial parameters 2016 2015 2014
Annual discount rate 0.86% 2.03% 1.50%
Annual inflation rate 1.50% 1.75% 1.75%
Annual rate of increase in employee termination benefits 2.63% 2.81% 2.81%
Demographic parameters 2016
Mortality RG48
Disability INPS tables by age and gender
Retirement age Meeting requirements for statutory pension insurance scheme

Reconciliation of liabilities 01/01/2016-31/12/2016

(euros)

Past service liability 01/01/2016 3,513,978
Total pension costs 64,563
Uses (667,037)
Actuarial gains (losses) 210,221
Past service liability 31/12/2016 3,121,725

The actuarial losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income without being recycled to
the income statement, as an adjustment to equity. The following table sets out the analysis of the sensiti-
vity to changes in the main actuarial assumptions used in the calculation model.

Sensitivity analysis Annuulci:;scount Annuarldltneﬂatlon Annuurlattuernover
+0.5% -0.50% +0.25% -0.25% +1.00% -1.00%
Past service liability 3,000,295 3,250,457 3,158,067 3,085,901 3,105,529 3,139,418
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P.5 Tax liabilities SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Tax liabilities: composition P.7 Share capital
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 Share capital: composition
(€ thousands)
Tax liabilities for direct taxes
a) current 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
b) deferred v Share capital subscribed and paid 164,646 164,646
Total 17 -
Total 164,646 164,646

“Tax liabilities” refer to the IRES payable in respect of components that will become taxable in future

periods. At December 31, 2016, the share capital amounted to €164,646 thousand, fully subscribed and paid up,
represented by 316,627,369 shares with a par value of €0.52 each.

P.6 Provisions for risk and charges
Share capital — number of shares: change for the period
Provisions for risk and charges: composition

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 Ordinary Other
1. Company pension plans A. Shares at the start of the period 316,627,369
2. Other provisions for risks and charges 1,715 2,138 - fully paid 316,627,369
2.1 Legal disputes 20 A1 Treasury shares (-)
2.2 Personnel expenses 1,152 1,549 A.2 Shares in circulation: opening balance 316,627,369
2.3 Other 563 569 B. Increases
Total 1,715 2,138 B.1New issues
B.2 Sale of treasury shares
B.3 Other changes
C. Decreases
Provisions for risk and charges: change for the period C1 Cancellation
(€ thousands) C.2 Purchase of treasury shares
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 C.3 Disposal of companies
C.4 Other changes
A. Opening balance 2,138 2,245 D. Shares in circulation: closing balance 316,627,369
B. Increases 657 1,549 DA Treasury shares (+)
B.1 Provisions for the year 657 1,549 D.2 Shares at the end of the year 316,627,369
B.2 Changes due to passage of time - fully paid 316,627,369
B.3 Changes due to changes in the discount rate
B.4 Other increases
C. Decreases 1,080 1,656
C.1Use during the period 1,080 1,302
C.2 Changes due to changes in the discount rate
C.3 Other increases 354
D. Closing balance 1,715 2,138
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P.8 Share premium reserve Information on the income statement

Share premium reserve

(€ thousands)
C.1 Income from equity investments
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Share premium reserve 1,736 1,736 Income from equity investments: composition
(€ thousands)
Total 1,736 1,736
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Income from equity investments 27361 29101
The share premium reserv lied to a total of 22,403,2 hares.
e share premium reserve applied to a total o ,403,298 shares Total 27,361 20,101

P.9 Reserves

Income from equity investments refers to fees received for outlays in respect of equity investments
Reserves (€26,572 thousand) and includes the related deferred payment interest (€373 thousand) and default inte-
rest (€416 thousand).

g

At December 31, 2016 the Company reported the following “Reserves”:

(€ thousands) C.2 Interest and similar expense
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 . i
Interest and similar expense: composition

Capital reserves: 5,165 5,165 (€ thousands)
Reserve pursuant to Art. 88(4) of Pres. Decree 917/86 5,165 5,165

i 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Earnings reserves: 140,780 139,904

Legal reserve 21,788 21,575 Interest and similar expense (1,535) (2,210)
Other reserves 55,465 54,802

. . Total (1,535) (2,210)
First-time adoption reserve 63,527 63,527
Total 145,945 145,069

This refers to interest expense accrued on bank current account overdrafts and on credit lines used to
meet cash flow requirements in respect of equity investments.

The reserve pursuant to Art. 88(4) of Pres. Decree 917/86 regards the capital contribution received from

the Ministry of Economic Development to subscribe the equity investment in FINEST Spa of Pordenone, as

established by Law 19 of January 9, 1991. C.3 Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Fee and commission income 16,381 18,746
Total 16,381 18,746

This item refers essentially to fees and commissions earned for managing the Venture Capital Fund
(€2,998 thousand), the Law 394/81 Fund (€6,607 thousand), the Sustainable Growth Fund (€728 thou-
sand), and the Law 295/73 Fund (€6,016 thousand).
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C.4 Net gain (loss) on trading activities

Net gain (loss) on trading activities: composition

(€ thousands)
Capital Trading Capital Trading
gains profits losses losses Net gain (loss)
(A) (B) (© (D) [(A+B)-(C+D)]
1. Financial assets held for trading 1,270 1,858 3,128
1.1 Debt securities
1.2 Equity securities
1.3 Units in collective investment undertakings
1.4 Loans 1,270 1,858
1.5 Other
2. Financial liabilities held for trading
2.1 Debt securities
2.2 Payables
2.3 Other
3. Financial assets and liabilities: foreign
exchange differences
4. Derivatives 786 816 (30)
4.1 Financial derivatives: 786 816 (30)
- on debt securities and interest rates 786 816 (30)
4.2 Credit derivatives
Total 2,056 1,858 3,098

The item reports the net positive balance of gains on the assignment of receivables for investments (€1,858
thousand), gains on the mark-to-market valuation at December 31 of derivatives relating to two financial
instruments (€786 thousand) and the negative differences on these transactions.

C.5 Other financial income

Other financial income: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Other financial income 43 52
Total 43 52

This item mainly refers to interest income on other financial receivables for mortgage and personal loans
to employees.
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C.6 Net impairment adjustments of loans

Net impairment adjustments of loans: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Net impairment adjustments of loans (6,009) (12,777)
Total (6,009) (12,777)

Net impairment adjustments of loans represent the individual and collective writedowns on loans in re-
spect of equity investments as shown in the following table:

(€ thousands)
Writedowns Writebacks Total at
Specific Portfolio Specific Portfolio 31/12/2016
Receivables for equity
investments (5,048) (1,617) 656 - (6,009)
Total (5,048) (1,617) 656 - (6,009)
C.7 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
a) Personnel expenses (14,126) (15,233)
b) Other administrative expenses (7,146) (6,682)
Total (21,272) (21,915)
Personnel expenses: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
1) Employee (12,881) (14,421)
a) wages and salaries (8,771) (8,498)
b) social security contributions (25) (30)
c) termination benefits (603) (615)
d) pensions (2,343) (2,333)
e) payments to external pension funds: (317) (324)
- defined contribution (317) (324)
i) other employee benefits (822) (2,621)
2) Other personnel (925) (422)
3) Board of Directors and Board of Auditors (320) (390)
Total (14,126) (15,233)
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Other employee benefits: composition

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Lunch vouchers (274) (271)
Insurance policies (530) (528)
Early retirement incentives (1,820)
Other benefits (18) )]
Total (822) (2,621)
Other administrative expenses: composition
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Professional and financial services (1,699) (1,162)
Outsourcing to CDP (285) (285)
Information technology (754) (544)
Advertising and marketing (540) (206)
General services (1,108) (1,098)
Utilities, duties and other expenses (2,607) (2,842)
Other corporate bodies (139) (101)
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Ministry of Economic Development
(Special programs) (14) (444)
Total (7,146) (6,682)

Fees for the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers Spa during the year are listed below:

(euros)

Provider Fee

Auditing PwC Spa 155,833

Total 155,833
C.8 Other operating (expense)/income

Other operating (expense)/income: composition

(€ thousands)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Other operating (expense)/income (18) 13

Total (18) 13
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(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Sundry personnel costs (657) (1,549)
Total (657) (1,549)
C.10 Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment
Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment: composition
(€ thousands)
Depreciation Writedowns for Writebacks Net adjustment
(a) impairment (b) (c) (a+b-c)
A. Property, plant and equipment
A10Owned (54) (54)
- Operating assets (54) (54)
- Investment property
A.2 Acquired under finance leases
- Operating assets
- Investment property
Total (54) - - (54)
C.11 Net adjustments of intangible assets
Net adjustments of intangible assets: composition
(€ thousands)
Amortization Writedowns for Writebacks Net adjustment
(a) impairment (b) (c) (@+b-c)
A. Intangible assets
A1 Owned (343) (343)
- Other (343) (343)
A.2 Acquired under finance leases
Total (343) - - (343)
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C.2 Income tax for the period

Income tax expense from continuing operations: composition

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
1. Current taxes (-) (5,780) (6,823)
2. Changes in current taxes from previous periods (+/-) 203
3. Reduction of current taxes for the period (+)
4. Change in deferred tax assets (+/-) (78) (113)
5. Change in deferred tax liabilities (+/-) (17) 55
6. Income taxes for the period (-) (-1+/-2+3+/-4+/-5) (5,672) (6,881)

In 2016 provisions for current and deferred tax liabilities amounted to €4,669 thousand in respect of cor-
porate income tax (IRES) and €1,003 thousand in respect of the regional business tax (IRAP). For deferred
tax items, a receivable of €2,612 thousand with respect to deferred tax assets and a payable of €17 thou-
sand with respect to deferred tax liabilities were recognized on the basis of the calculation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities at December 31, 2016.

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the theoretical tax liability and the actual tax liability
recognized.

(€ thousands)
31/12/2016
Net profit (loss) for the period before tax 16,996
Theoretical IRES tax liability (27.5%) (4,674)
Increases
- Temporary differences (181)
- Permanent differences (1,670)
Decreases
- Dividends 247
- Gains on equity investments 817
- Other decreases 792
Effective IRES tax liability (4,669)
(€ thousands)
31/12/2016
Difference between value of production and production costs 24,228
Theoretical IRAP tax liability (5.57%) (1,349)
Increases in taxes (9)
Decreases in taxes 355
Effective IRAP tax liability (1,003)
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Information on risks and risk management policies

Pursuant to Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, with regard to the main risks and uncertainties to which
the Company is exposed in its equity investments, SIMEST has implemented policies for managing finan-
cial risk, including exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

In 2016 the Board of Directors approved the SIMEST Investment Rules. The primary purpose of the rules is
to ensure that SIMEST, in coordination with Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti, is able to handle the
risks assumed with its own resources. The rules therefore contain the same risk management principles in-
troduced at the Group Parent level, taking account of SIMEST’s characteristics and size. The consequent
operational policies were also issued.

Within the scope of these rules and the Investment Rules in force since November 2015, there are specific
investment guidelines and specific measures for verifying credit ratings for each counterparty both prior
to entering into a relationship and ongoing. The rules govern the functioning of the investment and the
monitoring process and establish the roles of the various units involved.

The outcome of the origination activities conducted by the various organizational units is summarized
in investment proposals, which are then submitted for evaluation by the Investment Committee. In the
event a proposal is deemed valid and of interest — given the related financial/credit risks and methods for
managing and mitigating such risks — it is submitted to the SIMEST Board of Directors for final approval.
Subsequently, agreements with the partner are defined based on the guidelines and other indications
provided by the Board.

With regard to risk monitoring and mitigation, the credit risk related to the equity investment is first mi-
tigated by acquiring direct commitments from the Italian partners for the forward acquisition of the SI-
MEST shareholdings, and these commitments are backed, in part, by corporate sureties, collateral and
bank or insurance guarantees.

(%; € millions)

Guarantees 2016 2015

Direct commitments of Italian partners 83% 410 79% 370
Commitments guaranteed by financial institutions and

insurance companies 12% 58 16% 77
Commitments secured by collateral 6% 28 5% 21
Total amount paid 496 468

As at December 31, 2016, direct commitments with Italian partners for the purchase of the equity interests
totaled around €410 million (€370 million at December 31, 2015). Commitments backed by bank and/or
insurance guarantees totaled about €58 million (€77 million at December 31, 2015), and those backed by
collateral totaled €28 million (€21 million at December 31, 2015).

Price and foreign exchange risk are mitigated through contractual language which generally guarantees
that SIMEST will recoup its investment at the price paid in euros for the investment.

Liquidity risk and interest rate risk are monitored constantly using a cash flow analysis approach, espe-
cially for equity investments. In addition, in order to reduce exposure to liquidity and interest rate risk, in
2016 we continued to review the composition of debt in order to ensure the consistency of the temporal
profile of equity investments with the related debt by taking on new medium and long-term financing and
renegotiating existing lines of credit.

As to equity investments, as of December 31, 2016 there were 14 pre-litigation situations for which nego-
tiations are under way to recover the credit or for which settlement has been reached as a result of which
SIMEST is receiving payments. These positions refer to receivables — for repayment of principal and net of
amounts received from guarantors — of around €12 million. Furthermore, at the end of the year there were
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61 positions, also relating to positions no longer registered in the portfolio, being litigated (mainly enforce-
ment orders, arrangements with creditors and insolvency proceedings), corresponding to receivables — for
repayment of principal and net of amounts received from guarantors — of around €28 million.

During the year, the Company completed a project to design and implement the principles, processes
and operational tools for analyzing and monitoring the risk associated with investments. This monitoring
is done in order to quickly identify any abnormal credit positions so as to permit management to take
specific measures to protect assets and, if necessary, undertake credit recovery.

Special safeguards have also been put into place for the subsidized funds managed by SIMEST aimed at
monitoring and mitigating the main risks to which the funds are exposed. More specifically, to mitigate
the higher risk, i.e. credit risk, to which the Law 394/81 Fund is exposed, in 2016 the scoring system used
by SIMEST to financially assess applicants was updated. The proposed changes were approved by the
relevant Subsidies Committee and will be gradually applied to all the financing applications received by
SIMEST.

As to the Law 295/73 Fund, in 2016 the Subsidies Committee approved the plan for hedging risk using de-
rivative financial instruments to mitigate interest rate risk, the primary risk to which the fund is exposed.
This plan has been fully implemented.

Following the approval of the Risk Rules, during the year SIMEST implemented the process for asses-
sing the congruity between the available capital resources (represented by shareholders’ equity) and the
economic capital necessary for the risks assumed, measured using the Internal Capital Adequacy Asses-
sment Process (ICAAP) employed by the Group Parent. The results of the assessments confirmed that the
capital is fully congruent with the current situation and with the projected horizon of the Business Plan.

Transactions with related parties

Since September 30, 2016, SACE Spa has held a 76% interest in SIMEST and exercises management and
coordination over SIMEST.

Transactions with the Parent Company

With regard to transactions with the controlling shareholder SACE Spa and the other members of the CDP
Group, pursuant to Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, SIMEST, CDP and SACE have signed an Export
Bank Convention regarding the financing of international expansion and exports of Italian businesses,
with CDP providing financial support and SACE providing guarantees.

In addition, in relations with the majority shareholder, remuneration was paid to one member of SACE
Spa’s senior management who sits on the SIMEST Board of Directors (for €13.4 thousand) and payment
was made for professional services received within the scope of a contract relating to the assessment of
environmental impact parameters (OECD parameters) for export credit support transactions (for €20.0
thousand). Furthermore, the Company leases an office in Milan (for €1.8 million) from SACE BT (a subsi-
diary of SACE Spa) and an office in Venice from SACE Spa.

Transactions with other related parties

With regard to other CDP Group companies, SIMEST made use of a line of credit issued by Cassa depositi
e prestiti in a pool transaction with leading banks. In addition, in 2016 remuneration was paid for the three
members of the SIMEST Board of Directors appointed from among CDP’s senior managers (for €85.3
thousand) and for internal auditing and risk management units outsourced to CDP (for €285.0 thousand).
In 2016, six CDP employees were seconded to SIMEST and one SIMEST employee was seconded to CDP,
all on SIMEST’s payroll. There are also IRES tax payables due to Group Parent Cassa depositi e prestiti
Spa for joining the Group tax consolidation mechanism.
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During the year, SIMEST transferred to Fincantieri Spa its share in the jointly-held foreign company Fin-
cantieri U.S.A. Inc as provided by contract (for around €11 million). These transactions with related parties
have all been conducted on an arm’s length basis.

(€ thousands)
Directors Auditors
Amount due Amount Amount due Amount
for the year paid for the year paid
Short-term benefits 242 233 78 36
Total 242 233 78 36

Subsequent events

On January 27, 2017, the Board of Directors of SIMEST, acting on the recommendations of the majority
shareholder, unanimously appointed Simonetta Acri as a Director. During that meeting the Board also
appointed a member of the Board of Directors of FINEST. Also in January the State Audit Court designa-
ted Pio Silvestri to serve as the judge providing oversight of SIMEST’s finance operations pursuant to Law
259/1958.

Proposed allocation of profit for the year

We hereby submit for your review and approval the Annual Report for 2016, which includes the balance
sheet, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of comprehensive inco-
me, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements are
accompanied by the Directors’ report on operations.

Net profit for 2016, in the amount of €11,323,427, shall be allocated in accordance with the resolution of
the shareholders.

It should also be noted that €566,171 must be allocated to the legal reserve in accordance with Article
2430 of the Italian Civil Code.

For the Board of Directors
Chairman
Salvatore Rebecchini
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Financial highlights of the company that exercises management
and coordination

In accordance with Article 2497-bis, paragraph 4, of the Italian Civil Code, the following tables report key
financial highlights from the most recent financial statements of the Parent Company, SACE Spa, which
has its registered office at Piazza Poli 37-42, Rome, with fiscal code and VAT no. 05804521002.

(€ thousands)
31/12/2015
Property, plant and equipment 375
Investments 6,437,915
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 395,160
Receivables 1,562,785
Other assets 117,314
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 27,074
Assets 8,540,624
Shareholders’ equity
- Share capital 3,541,128
- Legal Reserve 215,466
- Other reserves 146,518
- Net income (loss) 406,652
Subordinated liabilities 500,000
Technical provisions 3,086,800
Provisions for risks and charges 200,286
Payables and other liabilities 426,574
Accrued expenses and deferred income 17,199
Liabilities 8,540,624
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Financial statements at December 31, 2016

(€ thousands)

31/12/2015
Technical account — non-life insurance business
Gross premiums 483,811
Change in the provision for unearned premiums and outward premiums (220,352)
Net earned premiums 263,459
Change in other technical provisions, net of reinsurance (5,225)
Allocated investment return transferred from the non-technical account 183,760
Change in the equalization provision (9,589)
Other technical income and charges (6,210)
Claims incurred, net of sums recoverable (174,358)
Bonuses and rebates (5,965)
Operating expenses (58,914)
Balance on the technical account for non-life insurance business 186,956
Non-technical account
Investment income — non-life insurance business 1,512,377
Financial charges in non-life insurance (996,015)
Allocated investment return transferred to technical account (183,760)
Other income 221,877
Other charges (97,413)
Balance on the non-technical account 457,065
Extraordinary profit or loss 13,854
Tax on profit or loss (251,224)
Net income (loss) 406,652

97



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

666°LLV°151 Aoy o301
000000‘S sl $S10NA0Y¥d AO04/34NLINDIYOY Ay 0dS INIYVYY¥34 VIODIYOV "00S ‘0dS INIYVIYIS 0dS VYVINSIA
0000002t (578 S1ONA0¥d A004/UNLINDIOY Aoy 1S ILLIYON VHd3L ONIAT1OH 0dS |11 IYON Vy¥3L
0000052 6'52 ONIYIINIONI Aoy 0ds INOIZVdIO3L4Vd YINSIN 0dg SYDINYIL
- (44 ¥3IHLO Ay 1S INOIZVdIDIL¥Vd OAONTILS odg ININIDYNVIN OAONTILS
000°000H salL SOILSY1d/d3ganyd Aoy 0dg SININOJWOD 310S YINIdd S SININOJWOD 310S
00070t 8’8y ADY¥INT Aoy 0dg YOMLIN NIF¥O 1S N3349 dvO10S
000009 92 S10NA0Yd AO04/3d4NLINDIYOV Aoy 1S 1¥9VIN ONITOW *HS V4IdOH odg OZzN¥av.d VT1IHOILSNY
000000 H 9 ONIYIINIONT Aoy 1“S OdNId 0dg YINO¥d
S INOIZVdIOILiVd 1411
‘0dS INOIZVdIOILYVd 3 VININDIONI IHOOI ‘1S
0000009 /e NOILONYLSNOO/ONIATING Aoy SYINLYVd 8 SYIDYNVYIN ¥3D0¥d ‘1S YININDIONI §I90¥d ds ¥390¥d
000000‘S 8'8t ONIYIINIONT Aoy 0ZZOd ONISINT odg S31¥LSNANI dINd
000000t 8'H S1ONA0Y¥d AO04/34NLINDIYOV Aoy 0ds 11301400 VD 0dg 17301400 0¥13ld
0000067 o6t ONI4IINIONT Aoy dg *0 8 INODITT13d IS O1410vd VISV INODIT13d
000000 H 6t S1ONA0Y¥d AO04/34NLINDIYOV Aoy V'S dnvdd 0dg YYVZ V1SVd
- 9'st $10NA0dd A004/34NLTINJIYOV Aoy S WYI40D pdg OLLODOVINYYd
000000y 9C ¥3HLO Aoy S IININVIVLLIIASYNI 0dg YYINOTVd
000061 96t L1I/SOINOYLO313 Aoy 1S SIOIAY3S HOILINWO ‘1S DNIQTOH HOILINWO 0dg 3TYNOIZYNYILNI VIdVIZNYNIZ HOILINWO
000°000‘S §'9¢ S10NA0Yd AOO04/3d4NLTINDIYOV Aoy ods ONIATIAOANOW S ONIA 130 OANOW WO
0000¥6°2 o6y ¥3IHLO Aoy 0dS v[1V.LI DNIGTOH 1Lv11300n8 S VITVLI 1LY11300N4d OlIVIN
0000027 Fog ONIHLOTO/SFNLXIL Aoy S OVNId HS TVLIOVIN
000'000'S e ONI¥IINION Aoy pds 'N10 HS VN
66675L'S oot 11/SOINOYLOF 13 Aoy ods SISNIA ods sl
0000001 pA SNIYIINIONT Aoy 0dS INOIZVdIOIL¥Vd OSd 0ds OSd OddNYD
000°00S°S §'sy ADY3INT Aoy odg YYOMLIN NIF¥D S MIAYAONNIY ONIQTOH YYOMLIN NIF4O
0000000k (] ONIYIINIONI Aoy 1S dNOYD "O'W'D ods vIDYINT 1L¥ONd
000008 reg $10NA0dd A004/34NLINJIYOV Aoy 'S'SIdIA ©'S'S VONIA S *0°8 ONIHOO04 "0 3SITTINVO VIN3TIILSIa
000‘000°GL 0'se S10NA0Y¥d AO04/34NLINDIYOV Ay 'dO0D YOV "“00S OIJOAONOd 13d OISV TVSVYO OIZYOSNOO 'dO0D YOV "00S OYOAOINOd 130 OOSYIVSYD OIZYOSNOD
000000°S 0'62 ONIYIINIONT Aoy S 34VITISONWINIA VIOS3dg odg JHOINYOOIAN ANIOIHHO INITTILSYO
IT13ANIOTINd
000‘000°‘S 9e ¥3IHLO Ay V143904 ‘[T1INIOTINd OWISSYIN “HS TYNOILYNYILNI TVAYD 0dg VIVLI 43400148
000005t Lot S30INY3S Aoy S ONIQTOH S IHL 0ds dNOYD 0SSOY OYANYSSITV
(s04na) yunowy Buipjoy 103088 Anunod Jaupipg upl|}| Aundwod
% LSANIS
- AipBuny |pjop
- 052 S30IN43S AioBuny 1LVIO0SSY 3 YOdVYO 3d OIdNnLs 1Y 1S34v4
666561y 2ouDI4 |DIOL
666'666'S ove ONIYIINIONT 9dupi4 odg OINSIL 'S'V'S SAIDOTONHOIL SIVYVIN
000961 [0X54 S30IN43S 90uDI4 HS VIVAOQYLIY INIDVININIT 'S'VY'S 3IANOYLIY FOVINIA
£09'v16°2 a1qnday yoezy [poL
209V16'2 o8k ONI¥IINIONT olqnday yoezd 1S INOIZVdIOILdVd dNOYDO dVOONDIL ‘O'd'S dVOONDIL
818‘80S°‘C DIIDOIY |DIOL
000988 o'se JINLINYNA/AOOM pRoOID S VLSIHOOA ‘0'0’a 308171349 VLSIHOOA
0008812 Lee ST13LOH/NSIINOL bipoID HS VIAVLOO ‘a'd WINTVYNIAIO
289 [o)r4? S3IDINY3S DIDOID 0ds ONIATOH YINOWYY ‘0'0'd VPINOWYVH v13ria
SS1'689 v'se ONI¥IINIONT p1POID ods S31¥1SNANI a4 ‘0'0'd SINY3S 4ad
180°e8S pupBIng [D}0L
180°¢8¢ Lol NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING ouobing ods ONO3LIN av vIidvo1ng ONOILINW
8Ivle pIUDQ|Y [DIOL
sIvlZ 56 NOILONYLSNOO/ONIATING olUDgY 0dS [¥434VOOVIA ANIOIHHO “Md'HS SNVX 1V [4434VOOVIN
(so4na) Junowy Buipjoy 103098 Anunon Jauying upi|p}| Aundwo)
% LSANIS 3dodNn3

9102 ‘LS 1oqwiad9( 1p salupdwod ul sjuswisanul Aynbae :xauuy

99

98



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

569680912 3d0yN3 IvoL
02h'265 auipyN [0I0L
02v265 89 NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING aubnn 0ds YOINVYIOTING “O'STAMINVYIN SN3Z
96082 Aospny jo3oL 'SV 134VOIL
000005k 2L ONIY3INIONT Aoxang 0dS VIVl ¥HV4 - ZLN3d JAVS JAIAVNVYS JOINVIL NTOOIVANSHYS ¥HV4-ZLN3d INVS
65629 192 ONIYIINIONT Aespny. ©dS VITOVYNYOD FHOIDYNTIVLIW INIDIHH0 ‘ILS "ALT AIMAINL VITOVNIOD
282 HL L6 11/SOINOY L0313 Aospan ods JIYLSNANI NOYLIg ‘ILS "aL7 DINVOINOYLINITI NOYLIg
0000002 uindg [pyoL
0000002 6'¢g SOILSY1d/y438any uipdg 4S SILN3Aa ‘N'V'S 0AVT10I03Y NS YYVd VINVAWNOD L3d
0005022 DIUBAO|S |D}O)
0005022 o'6v ONIYIINIONT bIUsAO|S ods dWOD30 ‘0'0'AdNO230
§26°e81'S pIqJes |PYOL
00K0SS 062 SOILSV1d/d3gany biqisg ods 1191S ‘0'0'a vIgy3s LIois
000782 002 JYNLINYNI/AOOM blqieg ods SOAV1d ‘HS Y113a ‘'O'0O'dNDIS3A LBd
620°058°S 5'8g ONI¥IINIONT piqes ods IAILOWOLNY ONd ‘0'0'd IAILONOLNY DN
00895} 002 STVOILNIOVINYVYHJ/STVOINIHO blqieg 0ds 0¥3dSO¥d NVS YT ‘0'0'A LSV dAV
000°0v2 ozek S30IN43S plqes 0ds HNIATOH YINOWYIY ‘0'0'a VFINOWYVH V134
(s0ana) yunowy Buipjoy SISELET Anunod Jauping upi|py| Aundwod
% LSANIS
0v929s°1e pissny |pIOL
20KIs2 L6l SOILSVY1d/438any pissny ods 1SY1dONO3L a17094Ng0d131d NVS LSVIdONOIL
00009¢ 6'es SOILSV1d/43gany pissny ods 1S¥1dOI43S OT1SNY LSVYTdOR3S
00082t oeg SOILSY1d/438any pissny ods HNIQTOH T1IW 10 O171ONIAQTOH TN @10
0009921 o'y ONI¥IINIONT bissny HS NIAIIVYIN 000 NY VINOVOIDIVIN
9611651 eve ONIYIINIONT pissny 0dS 14343400V INIOI440 017 SI0 SNOIAVD 14434VOOVIN
000°2vLT 1'ee NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING pissny ods NVdOSI 000 SNd NVdOSI
- 0L ONIHLO10/S31ILX3L pissny 0ds S'IN'IN'IN OVZ OYINITO
072892 LSk $10NA0Y¥d AO04/UNLTINDINYDY pIssny ds - ONILYVIN NVS VaV4 - OddITi4 1a 00230 3a 74 OSro N vidLX3
0ovY'$56'6 6'vg $10NA0Y¥d A004/34NLTINDIYOV pissny 0ds 1SSN100 OV SNY ISSNT0D
1987/} sk ONI43INIONT pissny S ONITT30 000 MWD
991822 DIUDWOY [D}OL
- v'ee ONI¥IINIONT plubwoy ods ¥310Y 74S VINVINOY 4310
1088t 88y SIVOILNADVINYYHA/STYOINIHOD pluDWOY 1S NOILVAONNI TVOIWIHO ANV TVINLYN YIHONVd T4S SNOILYAONNI TVINLYN VIOVANVYd
- 6L ONI¥IINIONT plubwoy S ANVdWOO TYNOILYNYILNI 14S dVNIHOD
000°Ser'L [:18 11/SOINOY.LO3 13 DIUDWIOY odg SNOILNTOS AV1dSId V801D V'S SIOIAY3S ONIINLOVANNVYIN SAD
000°09% (4 S30INd3S bluowoy 0ds "0 8 ITYNVO "D T4S OB ITYNVO O
SoL'SLy £'se ONIHLOTO/SITLXIL bluowoy HS 144V T4S X31040a
000°000°S pupjod |p}oL
000°000‘S g0g $10NA0Y™d A004/34NLINDIYOV pupjod 0dS |NI¥VH¥IH VIOOIIOV "00S 0dS INI¥VHYIS ‘O'0ZdS INIVYH3d
00000t DIUOP3JDIA |PIOL
000°00% 6'vC ONIHLOT0/S31ILX3L DIUOPBIDN 1S dNOYO V13Z 341 1900Q MIN V137 31
008220t OAOSO} [P}OL
00£208 oge STVOILNIOVINYVYHC/STYOINIHO OAOSO) ods 108 ‘00 1M1'M-10S
000022 144 NOILONILSNOD/ONIATING OAOSO) ods 1y 011 SOMYY
(s04na) Junowy Buipjoy 103098 Anunod Jauping upi|p}| Aupdwo)d
% 1S3ANIS

101

100



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

2902L2'vL |1zpag P3O
985°259 0'se S30INY3S 11zoig 0ds 34314YNOY¥IA VAL1 SOLNIAT 3d OVSVYOINVYOYHO 1ISVyd OQ FH3IAVNOYIA
VALl VAILOWOLNY VI¥LSNANI
000000t 0'8e ONI¥IINIONT |1zoig 4S ONIQTOH VYNI¥3gIL VdVvd SOOITVLIN SILNINOJNOD 3d FJAILONOLNY VYNI¥3FIL
VALl VAILOWOLNY VI¥LSNANI
000°000'% z'se ONIIINIONI |1zoag MSONIQTOH VNI¥3EIL  ViVd SOOIMVLIN STLNINOJINOD DN JAILOWOLNY YNI¥IEIL
1992¥5C 28l ONIYIINIONT |1zoig HS STVIIALYN TVIJLSNANI O31IN Vval171svyda 0d vioLs
000022 661 11/SOINO¥.LO313 |1zoig 0ds |DINOYLLITT INILSIS OIS VALTSODINOY LTI SYINALSIS OIS 3SS
£0'89S 822 ONIYIINIONT 11zoig ods D3NIOS ‘edS 111¥AITI0D V'S 1ISvyg Od OINTI0S
000005+ e SNIYIINIONT |1zoig ds YINO¥d VYAL11S300VdIOILYVd 1ISYHE0AVINOId
0000006 Fvs ONI¥IINIONI izoig 0ds JALLONOLNY ONd VaL17ISY¥8 0a YAILOWOLNY ONd
000529 6'8 S3DIN43S |1zoig 0dS | 14OdSVYL INVYAId V'S TISVHd INVYAId
0000001 6k 133LS/STVLIN OISvE izoig 0ds VI19VHIOYVIN VaL17ISY¥E 0 VITOVOIOYVIN
828°66} Vi4 FUNLINYN3/AOOM 11zoig HS INIONVIN VAL SOLNIINILSIANI 3 STOOVIOILAV YOIIINY HLNOS INIONVIN
809685y oSk ONI¥IINIONT |1zoig HS YN VaL111Svag 0d IAILONOLNY OLLINOVYIN
000°056°t §'ee ONIYIINIONT |1zoig 0dS YOILNYNOYIY IHOVYNOVIN VA11S300VdIOILEVd TISVY¥E O YOILNYNOYIV IHOVNOVIN
VALl SYIIVITISONI 3 SIVINVSIIdING
000°025‘S 6'St NOILONYLSNOO/ONIaTING |1zoig 0dS 14343400V INIOI440 S300VdIO3LY¥Vd ONIQTOH TISYdg Oa [4334vOIVIN
VALl OvOVvOIlddl Yivd
000009 e ONIYIINIONT 11zoig 0dS O3 LMYl SOLNINVCIND3I 3A OIOYINOD 3 VI¥LSNANI TISY¥d OQ DA LI¥AI
000°000°8 e STVOILNIOVINYVYHJ/STVOINIHO |1zoig ods 1gv4 IAI VA1 S30OVdIOILYVd TISVYE 18V4 IINI
000052 ove ONIYIINIONT 11zoig 0dS TYNOILYNYILNI NILSAS TvEO1D VA.11SOOILSY1d SOLOVH43 LY 3d OVYOVOIdav4 1ISvda ISO
000'S2e v'ee ONIYIINIONT |1zoig 0dg INIIVASYD  VALTSYNINOVIA 3A OIDYINOD 3 VIMLSNANI-TNSOOYIN INIIVASYD
000°005 1474 11/SOINOYLO313 11zoig 0dS VIAIYAXI VALl vOILYIWYOANI 3a SODIAY3S 1ISYYd Oa VIAIYAXI
£92'e8 8'ee NOILONYLSNOO/ONIATING |1zoig ds YOINVYIOTING Va.risvag od dnodo TINg
0000%H ok ONI¥IINIONI izoig dg |HHI0D VaL171ISvdg 0d IHOY0D
0002k Lve ONIYIINIONT 11zoig 0ds [1ISNILNNOD VALl 1svyg od IMISN3ILNNOD
00s‘zle 4 ONI¥IINIONI izoig 0ds S31¥1SNANI MSY VaL17ISvdg 0a MSY
£0S‘0H‘8 pA14 1331S/STVLAN DIsva 11zoig 0ds ¥34VLIN VaL171Svaa Od ¥341VLIN 1a3AGY
0000000k [oX] S30INY3S |!zoig odg | OVINOO VAIAVNTY V'S IS8 Od VAIWWNTY
000000t 992 NOILONYLSNOO/ONIaTING |1zoig 1S TYNOILYNYILNI SNINIAQY Vval171Svyda 0d SNIN3IAQY
000022 1'se S3OINS3S |1zoig 0dg HNIQTOH ONVYEY VAL OJINO4313L OLNIWIANALY 30 SODIAYIS TISYdE 00 ONVHEY
8Lv'v8e‘y punuabiy |pyoy
000000 S/ JAILONOLNY ounusBiy US ONIQTOH VNId3alL V'S VNILNIOYVY JAILONOLNY VYNIY3EIL
8Ly'v8S’L 6/¢c STVOILNIOVINYVYHJ/STVOINIHO ounuabiy 0dg 071343V T VOINIHO YLII00S V'S TVYLSNY 10S OOINWONOD3 OdNdD
(soans) Junowy Buipjoy 10)09g Anuno) Jauying upi|p}| Aupndwo)
% LSANIS VORIANY
152°81522 VOI¥4V [oloL
02s‘vre‘y ppupb |PIOL
02S‘vve'y 6'88 ADYINT ppupbn odg Ovd dL1 SONIATOH vdIS
255°890°S pisjuny |pjo)
000°00S 82 ¥3HLIO pisiun] S dNOYO V137 341 TYV'S NLJNOYO VIIZ 3L
00062 Sve S30IN43S osjun. 1S INVAIS “TU'V'S AISINNL NVAIS
ig8rLL S22 NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING pisiun} US OSH “TYVY'S ANIGIIHOVIN Odd34110IS
0000k 0L SOILSY1d/d3gany pisiun] odg MILSY1d “TYY'S INOIYAVY QYON MILSY1d
610°005 92 ONIY3INIONT pisiung S 'MM O313IN TY'VY'S TYNOILYNYILNI O3 13N
059 6'¢C NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING pisiun] odg INITYND THY'S INOIAY INITVND
89612l 29l NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING pisiung 0dg V1INIARL NOL3E TVYINTD “TYVY'S AISINNL NOLIE TVYINTO
171086 Sve ONI¥IINIONT pisiun] odg dNOYD 0¥N3 TYV'S VISINNL VYNLYIONVILOANT
- 8L S30INI3S pisiun| 0dg OddNIAS I¥dY ONIATING TYNOLLNLILSNI8 3LVHOdYOD - 41D
682°99¢ |pBausg |pyoL
682992 ove $10NA0Y¥d A004/34NLINDIYOVY |oBausg S [IVININIMY FI4LSNANI INOINNIY V'S ONIHSIH VOINO
SSE‘018L DY YINos |D}0
000000k 0'se SOILSV1d/43gany POy Yinog odg |SY1dOIN3S AaL7(ALd) VOIY4V HLNOS LSYT1dOIy3S
000°S8Y't £'92 NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING P4y Yinog 0dg [¥¥34VOOVIA ANIDOIHHO a11 (ALd) VS 14¥34VOOVIN
§52°628'Y 4] ONIYIINIONT DO YInog US VYN AaL7(ALd) VOI¥4Y HLNOS JALLOWOLNY YIN
000005 802 11/SOINOYLO3 13 DY YInog ods sN1vaia VAL1 vOld4v N43IHLNOS SN1va3id
000°00 099010 [0}OL
00000 052 SOILSY1d/43gany 022040\ ods 1191 TYV'S Z4L OOV LIDIS
000°s2k pidoiyi3 |pyoL
000°set S'0e NOILONYLSNOO/ONIATING oidoiyi3 S OINOLNY vand *0"1d 3194VIN vand
0vS°c0S‘y 1dAB3 o301
vorosLl 052 ONIHLOT0/S31ILX3L 1dAB3 S 1Y LSNANI ¥3dIINHOS I'V'S ANVANOD SIIILSNANI TOOM NVINVIYILIAIN
126°c/8 x4 ONIHLO1O/S31LX3L 1dAB3 dg INIgTV OIOIHINOLOD ‘IS FTLXIL NVINVHHILIAIN
5/8°00L x4 SOILSY1d/43dany 1dAB3 odg XVIN-ILSY1d ‘I'V'S LSV1d ONIM
S/0ve 08 S30IN43S ¥dAB3 0ds "'N'3S'3D ‘00 S3OIAA3S INFANNOYIANT TVNOILYNYILNI
4S ININOT3AIA IOINY3S
S18‘e8y S8l S30IN43S ¥dAB3 TYNOILYNYILNI 0dS dNOYD LNINLSIANI ZVP ‘I'V'S ST1OIHIA 4O STVLINIY LNVLSNI
000°Sy 8'Gl ONIHLOTO/SATILXIL 1dAB3 0dg INI¥IOND YNVITVLI VENLLYAINYIN 3'V'S INOZ 33344 SAVIYHL X31INOD
(so4na) yunowy Buipjoy 103085 Anunod Jauying upl|oy| Aupdwod
% LSANIS YOIV

103

102



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

2£2782°002 VOIIINY [P3oL
5116668 D|oNZBUaA |D}OL

S11'666'8 65l S30INA3S D|anzausp odg NIAIYLId V'O SY4310413d SINOIOVHO4d3d A SOIOIAYIS NIAFEL3d
1£2‘090°2L VSN IPIoL

00005 o6y ONIYIINIONI v'sn odg NVS3IHL 'dd0OD VSN NVS3IHL
690°90t2 oeg ONIYIINIONT v'sn odg OINSIL ‘ONI'VSN O3FINS3IL
168685 0'se SOILSV1d/438any v'sn odg dNOYD DNIDVYIOV TYNOILYNYILNI Ya3Is ‘ONI SYOIRIINY va3s
000096 Loy 1I/SOINOY1LO313 v'sn ds INOSOL 3TANI OddNYH PdS Id0INI VAIVS “ONI SYOIIINY VaIvS
162212 0'6v S.10NAd0¥d A004/34NLINDIYOY v'sn 0ds OLLODVINYVd “ONI VSN OLLOOVINYYd
116162 g'ee T1331S/STVLIN DISvE v'sn ods g¥INITON 'd¥02 VSN avINITON
Lil'Sp8oL LLe STVOILNIOVINIVHA/STYOINIHO v'sn 0dS VI¥VIZNYNI4 D8N 00 DNIYIINIDNT 8 SOILSIDOT DB
2159971 9’6l S.1ONA0¥d AO04/3INLINDIDY v'sn 0dS VIYVYNOIZY J¥VITISOWNI VINDYINOD “O" 1T IVNOILYNYILNI O
852188‘S 9’6y ONIYIINIONT v'sn ds SSYTONI "ONI VSN SSYTONI
$02'ses’t 8 ONIYIINIONT v'sn 0ds OTYVO ILLAND “ONI VSN OV ILLAND
£99°21£9 o6t ADY¥3NT v'sn ods ADYIXT "ONI' ONIGTOH INJNLSIANI 0T3O
000°0SZ L8 1331S/STVLAN DIsva v'sn 0ds [1019vA ‘ONI 10I19VH
655°062°2 X34 S3DINA3S v'sn ods AVHYINT "ONI SIILINNLIOddO dV10S TVE0TO AVYIINT
20KIekl 0’6t 1I/SOINOY103713 v'sn ods 33X0d *ONI VSN 33X0a
SeKLLt oS S10NA0Y¥d A004/34NLINDIOV v'sn 0dg V1IAVIOD ‘ddOD TYNOILYNYILNI VLIAVIOO
86£°0SV'6 687 ONI¥IINIONT v'sn S ANIM INIA3YE "ONI VSN ANIM INIAFdE
25SUS 1414 ONIYFINIONT v'sn ods $31¥1SNANI a8 *0"171 VOIIWY HLION S3I4LSNANI 48
000°0S2SH Lel ONI¥IINIONT v'sn 0dS |1VYOV Y ‘dd402 VSN ILVHOV
(s04nad) Junowy Buipjoy 103008 Anunop Jauyingd upi|py| Aupdwo)

% LSANIS

618°801°‘81 021X [DIOL

000°000°S 'y ADYINT [LINETN] S 1TVIO3dS INOIZVdIOILYVd ¥IMOd NIFHD TINT ‘ND 30 V'S VVAVYN VdILS
SSLH9 v'os ST3LOH/INSI¥NOL 02IXBN 1S ONIATING TIVINS V'S 19043 vY0aVd3IdOo
£69°00S I'e STVOILNIDVNEVHA/STVOINWAHD 001X\ 0dg dNOYD OLYNVAILS ‘AD 30 7Y 3A 'S VOIIINY HLYON IdWNO
SI216l 2ee ONIYIINIONT 02IXB\ 0ds NOYLHOIN dWO ‘AO 30 V'S OOIX3N NOYLHOIN dWO
000000+ 96 ONI¥3IINIONT 021X\ 0ds vS10 ‘ANO 30 TH3A’S ZIILOWOLNY NOIOVNIANNTI 3A SYINALSIS VST0
6.8C2 v ONI¥IINIONT 0DIXB\ S INJLSAS AINT4 OONITA ‘AO 30 V'S ODIX3N 3d OONI T4
181152 ol ONIYIINIONT 021X\ 0ds VNLYIONVYLO¥NI ‘AO 30 V'S ODIXaN VINLYIONVILOdNI
29L'ssy 0'se ONIYIINIONT 021X\ S IS *pdS "N 1O ‘AO3d 718 30 'S XINO0YL3
000°000°S g'e ADY3INT 001X\ S 1TVIO3dS INOIZVdIOILYVd 4IMOd NIFHO TINT ‘NO 30 °1d’V'S NVdVOTIdOZ vOI103
282609 8've 11/SOINO¥.LO0313 001X\ odg dNOY¥OYA3a ‘AD3d 71¥3A 'S X3Wva3a
0000052 8'se ONIYIINIONT ODIXBN ods dNOYH INVAIA0YE ‘AO 30 V'S OJIX3IN FNFY INVAIACHE
00°000°S D21y D}SOD [DIOL

¥00°000°S x4 ADYINT D21y DISOD 0dg YIMOd NIFHD 13IN3 V'S SYONHO ‘Hd
0St‘S9KSE 3|y [o3oL

£06226'7 Sy ADYINT Elle) 0ds ¥3IMOd N3F¥D TIN3 V'S 3LNIRO AVNITVL OOI103 IN0YVd
009°0L 9'0c NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING ClllVe] ods ONOILIN V'S 31IHO 3@ ONOI1IN
Lvv'806'8 e SOI¥1LO3130dAAH Cl[[Ve} S INOISSIONOD IQ1VLSY VAVLIAIT OOWISSY SINOISHIANI
000°‘ste 2 JYNLINYNA/AOOM ElVe) S ONIANONW VYSNNIA - VS S3T193NIN 3a YdOaNnayLsia
0058l Sve S3DINY3S 9Iyo odg yITvLI IINOE ‘Vd'S 311HO 3a INOg
PSeeve ppoUDY |PIOL

YrSeev'e oer 11/SOINO¥10313 ppoUDD 0ds IN3LSIS 13a VININDIONI - 'S'A'l 417 vOIdINY HLION Sdl
(s04na) junowy Buipjoy 103098 Anunop Jauylipg upi|py| Aundwo)p

% LSANIS

105

104



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

Sv6212°29 pulyo |ojoL
000'508 602 FANLININ4/AOOM bulyo 0ds 103113 a1L7°00 TVI¥3LVIN M3IN 103713 ONVIrIHZ
286°16 S'el ONI¥IINIONI bulyo ds O1ZZI¥ "ONI VIYLSNANIOATVA ¥IA aL11SV3 dv4 dIA
000529 002 ONI433INIONT bulyo 0dg LI ¥OLOVHLTIVLI aL7 0D NIPNVIL NLINVLIL
= L9 ONIHLO10/S31ILX3L bulyo ods HOSVS aL7°00 LNINIVO IA NIX NVIL
000°0Lt't Sve ONI433INIONT bulyo ods D3IN1I0S a11°00 AYINIHOVIA (ONVIPNM) OFNTIOS
0S'6LL L 002 ONI43INIONI bulyy 0dg dNOYD 189 - ILIS a17°00 ADOTONHOIL OINVY3D 189 LLIS
£61'00S 9l ONI433INIONT bulyo HS dNOYD SSIUJTINI d17°00 SYOLVIAVY ONILVIH NIPNVIL dNOYD VIS
620268 9Lk ONI¥IINIONT bulyg 0ds 3YLSNANI VIS al1°00 SLONA0dd WNININNTY (NIPNVIL) VIS
000°005t 8l ONIY3INIONT bulyo 0dS VIV.LI ¥HV4 - ZLN3d INVS AL7°00 AY3INIHOVIN 4HV4-ZLN3A NITONVYHO OSNOANVHS
£62221°1 9'8¢ ONIIIINIONS oulyo ods dANVS 41700 (IVHONVHS) AYINIHOVIN JHIM dNVS
000008 002 SOILSY1d/438any bulyo 0dS TYNOILYNYILNI INILSAS V801D dL1°00 IVHONVYHS 439NV
9/¥'vS8 192 ONI43INIONT bulyo 0ds S31¥1SNANI dINd AL7°00 (ONVOIVL) SWILSAS IAINA dNd
000°0SS+ [4:4 ONIHLOTO/S3TLXIL bulyo ods dNOYD AFYILNAd dLTONOXY ONOH AF¥3LN3d
000°Gee 4 ONI¥IINIONI oulyo 0ds SIULSNANINSY  A11°00 NOILYOIINNININOD ANY ANNOS JALLOWOLNY HSY OFONIN
952625 cl NOILONILSNOO/ONIATING bulyo ods ONO3LIN aL7TONOX ONOH ONIdTOH ONO3LIN
8/8'v8. 8'8l 11/SOINOYLO3 13 bulyo V'd'S INILSAS VLIN A1L7°00 SOINOYLO3 T INJLSAS V1IN
000°0k 002 ONI¥FINIONI pulyD 0dg [3LLVIN VANI 'ONI - QL17°00 DNRINLOVANNYIN SYOSSTIAINODAIY (NOHZNS) IFLLYIN
000°‘000°0k 16 ONI433INIONT bulyo 0dS V1OYHIOYVIN 41700 VNIHD VITOVOIDIVIN
0956782 8've ONI¥IINIONT bulyo 0dg [¥334¥OOVIN ANIOIHH0 ALTVISY [4d34vOOVIN
£9'Gel S've S30INd3S bulyo S VIVAOYILIY INIOVININI AL VISV VLVAOYULIY INIOVINNIA
0S0°000°L 6L ONI¥IINIONT bulyo 0dg NOISSIWSYYL ¥3MOd INIATYE dS YSSINOIT VT AL1°00 SONI¥YIE DNIMITS (ONIHONVA) INIATY¥E YSSINOIT
092°2v8‘L 002 SOILSY1d/438any bulyo S X3714-M ILNVIOSIA Aa11°00 NOILYINSNI (ONOM DNOH) X3 14-H
256525 89 ONIIIINIONS oulyo ods ¥$10 ANVANOD ONIINLOVANNYIA VSTO ONIXVIP
6570522 Sve JANLINYN4/AOOM bulyo 1S ANVIV40S dL7°00 FANLINYNA NOISIA ONVIIN AN ONIXVIP
(s04na) Junowy Buipjoy 103093 Anunod Jauyipd upi|py| Aundwo)

% LSANIS
097'SIS 002 ONIY3INIONT bulyo 0dg YYING AL7°00 LNINGIND3I YIMOd 4OOALNO MVINT NINONVIP
61629} 6L ONI433INIONT bulyo 1S NOILOW 1700 (NIHZN3IHS) LNIAN3dIANI
699°G9L 0'se ONIYIINIONT pbulyo S VI¥3IANOA INIHOOVIN ILNVIdINIT 3''I L1702 (NIPNVIL) AYINIHOVIN AYANNOL JNI
8/8'He 902 ONI433INIONT bulyo S O1S VNOOI QL7 ONOX ONOH ¥YNOOI
0/£°265 0'se 11/SOINOY1D313 pbulyo odg SNOILNTOS AV1dSIA TVE0TD L7102 (NOHZNS) NOLLNTOS AV1dSId Va0
000°G8L Sve S30IN43S bulyo odg dNO¥D 019D ALTMHALONOID
000006 [03:13 ONI¥IINIONT bulyo 0d3 TYNOILYNYILNI LINSYD a11°00 SININOJINOD IATVA (NOHZNS) LINSYD
2826292 991 ONIHLOTO/S3LXIL bulyo S dNOYD IAVIN NVIA 114 1109 (NOHZNS) SFTILXIAL TWOINHOIL DNINA
ar-oo
G279 sch ONIYIINIONT bulyo S INJLSAS AIN1d OONI T4 SINFLSAS 8 LNININDI AYVITIXNY Y¥IMOd OFONIN OONI T4
16281 0'se ONI433INIONT bulyo HS vO d17°00 ST00L 31IGONOLNY NIHSYNH OONIT4
000000t 0'se ONIY33INIONT bulyo 0dS 'y'Od 41700 HO310LNY WAVIA
8.80L6'Y 134 S10NA0Y¥d A004/34NLINDIYOY bulyo 0dS INI¥VYYIH VIODIOY YLIIO0S S INIVYIS AL 01410vd INIdVHd3d
000005 0'se ONIHLOTO/S3ILX3L bulyo odg |gv4 aLivisv lav4
6vl'esee 9L ONI433INIONT bulyo 0ds dNO¥D O¥N3 AL VISY dNOY¥S 0iN3
[VA7AVE:AS 1 7%4 ¥3HIO pulyo ods INVINYA dLTONOX ONOH INVINVA
Y12°2r0°‘s K 1331S/STV1IN DISva bulyo 0dg [TY103dS IVIOOY AINDOD Q3LINITONOX ONOH INDOD
ar-oo
85209 g9l ONIY33INIONT bulyo 0ds "S'IN"O (ONVIPNM) DNIINLOVANNYIN T¥OINYHOIW NOISIOFdd SWO
000009 SL ONI¥IINIONT bulyo ods NOISSIWSNVYL ¥3IMOd INIATYE 1700 SIAINA AYVLINYId (ONTHONVA) INIATHE
000009 oS ONIYIINIONT buiyo odg ¥y3MOd dINT4 INIATYE d11°00 ¥3IMOd AINT4 (ONTHONVA) INIATHE
£98'85L'e 082 ONI¥IINIONT bulyo odg [YOLLNAI TOITOIANOE 1700 (IVHONVHS) S¥IAINA I1OIMDIINOg
000018 9L ONIYIINIONT bulyo odg INOZ108 dLTONOX ONOH ONIATOH INOZT1049
000°GHe‘L 0'6 11/SOINOYLO3 13 bulyo odg 3YLSNANI NOYLIE Q17700 VNIHO AYLSNANI NOYLIg
/Sv'082't 6°0L 11/SOINOY1D0313 bulyo odg 3Y1SNANI NOYLIE d1L17°00 VYNIHO JINOY.LO3 T3 NOyLIg
1S VYLX3L ‘0dS OITIDYIA YNVIVL VANLISSIL ‘1S IINOY PdS

F41VIV) '8l ONIHLO1O/S31ILX3L bulyo X3LIVIN 3AVId ‘HS FUVIN YHNZZY YINIT ‘0dS "0 8 1173504 3 dLTONOX ONOH ViVIHO va1v
(s04n?) Junowy Buipjoy 10}098 Alunod Jauying upijp}| Aupndwo)
% LSANIS VISV

107

106



Annex: equity investments in companies at December 31, 2016

Annual Report 2016

9102 ‘I ¥38IN303A 40 SY

601859025
avodav ANV ATV.LI NI SLNIWLSIANI ALIND3 TVLOL
000005 VINV3OO [oi0L
000°‘00S pup|paz MaN |p}o]
000005 0'Se ONIHLOTO/S3LXIL pupjoaz MaN HS VNVIA AL7-ZN SY4OLNAIYLSIA HLIOMINIM
(s04n?d) Junowy Buipjoy 103098 Anunop 1duypIngd upi|py Aupdwo)
% LSINIS VINV3IOO
1£¥°292°06 VISV IPioL
066°121L SeipJiwg qoly papun [PIoL
000°00S 0'se S3DIN43S $93bJIW3 qoAY pajun HS VITVLI OVdVN 00Z4 1Sv3 37aAIN DVdVYN
992°S1L S9 ONIY33INIONT S9jbliW3 qoay payiun 0dS ANVJINOD OILOITIONNIL ONVYNDIT 00z4 1Sv3 31adIN 011
210°00S°S L9g SOILSY1d/d38any Se3bliWg qoay payun 1S X374-M ILNVIOSIA Q3LINIT NOILVINSNIMI
219'80v 002 ONIY33INIONT SjbliW3 qoiy payun 0dg HNI¥FINIONT 117137738 OTTONILOVYLNOD TvHINID ONI¥IINIONI SILVHING 1131138
212U pupjipy] [p3OL
eeielyt 9L 1331S/STVLIN DIsve pupjiby L ods 3]¥1SNANI ¥38v4 AL7 SY3IANITAD SEATVHO
68021 D30y ynog |pyoL
680°2LY o've ONIHLOTO/S3TLX3L D310} yinog ds INOVd O¥IO AL7°00 V340X NOLIM
000009 aiodobulg [pjoL
000009 68t S30IA43S alodobuig ods [10IDV4 AL LAd VISV 170194
(s04na) yunowy Buipjoy 103088 Anunop Jauypnd upi|py| Aundwo)
% LSANIS
000°02s‘L sauiddijiyd |pIoL
000028t 2'9p NOILONILSNOD/ONIATING seuiddijiyd 0ds [¥¥34¥OOVN INIDIHH0 "ONI DNIINLOVANNYIN (SANIAITIH) [¥33IVOOVIN
000982 pISAD|D |PYOL
0007922 L2 SOILSVd/43gany PISADIOIN S X374-1 ILINVI0SIA AHA NAS VISAVIVIA X374
L2122 |opis| p3oL
Lellel Sve SOILSVId/y43gany [9pIs] 0ds TYNOILYNYILNI SIgTV aLvanly
6v5990°GH pIpu| |PIOL
£91'28L rel ONI43INIONT pIpu| 1S ININZVYYP AL7 LAd S13Vd 4OLOVYL 8 3OVIdIVOHIANN-dLN
SSY'vYS 74 1I/SOINOYLO3713 olpuj ods WILSAS ONO3L Q17 LAd VIONIN3LSAS ONO3L
000°008 og ONI¥IINIONI pipu| ods dNOYH ISSOYIDYOLYAAIS AL7 LAd VIONI ISSOd43Dd0443aIs
161085 L'ge ONIY3INIONI olpuj dg INOSOL 3T'ANI OddNYH ‘PdS 3dOY¥N3 VAIVS Q.17 LAd SYOIYILNI VISV ViIVS
02’66 0'se SOILSVId/d3gany plipu| ods |NISSOY QL7 LAd S43T108 ONILNIdd VIANI INISSOY
000000t 6°8l ONIY3INIONI olpuj ds S31¥LSNANI dNd QL7 LAd VIONI SW3LSAS JAIMA dNd
000009 00c S30INI3S bipu| 1S ONIYIANIONT ID10 Q17 LAd VIONI ONI¥3INION3I 1070
2es‘ser'l v'ee NOILONYLSNOD/ONIATING pIpy| ods ONOILIN Al11Ad (VIANI) ONO3LIN
£v2°95S £'5e ONIY3INIONI bipu| ods V38NN YOINOILONVOOIN Q17 1Ad VIANI YOINOILONVOOIN
000°000°S 8y SOILSVd/43gaand pIpy| 1S X374-X ILNVI0SI QL7 LAd VIANI X374-M
0ds |SSTYONOOIYIIS -
15208 §'6 Y¥3HIO pIpu| VAYVvo 13a VAIY ‘1S TYNOILYNYILNI VAIY OdX3 QL7 LAd NOILISOdX3 NVITVLI
evist 0’6l $10NA0¥d A004/3dNLINDIOY olpuj pds 0ZZNYgv.d Y113HOILLSNY a1 LAd SQO04 YiOLSND
000°LH St S3I0INIIS bipu| ods [1019V4 AaL7 LAd VIONI OSd I7019V4
000052 0've $10NA0Y¥d A004/3NLINDIOY olpuj 1S VI§VIO10d YNOOSI0.a QL7 LAd SINIIQIYONI LIIMS YNOOSHO.d
186'vvL'L ¢0e ONI¥IINIONT bipu| ods 0130.113d 411 1Ad VIAONI OLd0113a
000'sZ o’le SOILSVd/d3aany olpuj 1S 92 VI4VYOI43S AaL1.1Ad NITVO3d
05252 vl ONIYIINIONT bipy| 0ds VITOVYNYOO FHOIDYNTIVLIN INIDI440 QL7 LAd VIONI SLONAOYd TVOIDINTIVLIN VITOVYNIOO
000‘s2k Sk ONIY3INIONT bIpy| 0ds ¥I90TONOIL 3 INOIZN10S INTD0D A1 1Ad S18Vd NOISIO3dd INID00
(so4nd) junowy Buipjoy loyoeg Anunop Jauypnd upi|oy| Aundwo)
% LSANIS

109

108



Report
of the Board
of Auditors




Report of the Board of Auditors

Report of the Board of Auditors

Financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2016

Shareholders,

This report was approved by the entire Board in time for filing at the Company’s (SIMEST’s) registered
office 15 days prior to the date of first calling of the Shareholders’ Meeting to approve the financial sta-
tements.

The Board of Directors provided us with the following documents, approved on March 2, 2017, for the year
ending December 31, 2016:

e draft financial statements with the statement of cash flows and accompanying notes;

e report on operations.

During the financial year ending December 31, 2016, we carried out our statutory supervisory activity in
. iRER accordance with the standards recommended by the National Council of the Italian Accounting Profes-
et L (1 ¢ 2B

We preface our remarks as follows:

A. the Board of Auditors sitting at the date of this Report was appointed by the Ordinary Shareholders’
Meeting of August 6, 2015 and is composed of Daniele Discepolo (Chairman), Laura Guazzoni (Stan-
ding auditor) and Carlo Hassan (Standing auditor);

. SIMEST is a joint-stock company (societa per azioni) indirectly controlled by Cassa depositi e prestiti
Spa (CDP);

. SACE Spa holds a 76% interest in SIMEST, starting from September 30, 2016, as a result of the transfer
by CDP to SACE Spa of its controlling interest;

. the Company is subject to the management and coordination of its Parent Company SACE Spa in
accordance with the “Rules on the exercise of management and coordination” approved by CDP and
adopted by the Board of Directors of SIMEST;

. in 2016, the Company, taking account of the recommendations of the Parent Company SACE Spa in
the exercise of its management and coordination duties, approved the outsourcing of the risk manage-
ment, compliance, internal auditing, human resources, IT systems and procurement functions to SACE
Spa as from April 1, 2017, with credit recovery activities to be outsourced to SACE SRV Srl (subsidiary
of SACE Spa) at a subsequent date;
in 2016, the Company approved the Risk Rules, the primary purpose of which is to ensure that the
Company, in coordination with Group Parent CDP, is able to handle the risks assumed with its own
resources; the consequent operational policies were also issued. The Risk Rules and the Investment
Rules (in force since November 2015) contain investment guidelines and specific measures for monito-

P i ed m 0 nt CO m pa n y o LSA I i g h t S ring them and verifying the associated credit ratings;

. the Company approved the 2016-2020 Business Plan on December 21, 2016, which was prepared in

u p C H I NA q n d M EX I Co accordance with the guidelines provided by SACE and in line with the Group business plan approved
by CDP;

. starting from the previous year SIMEST has exercised the option to prepare its financial statements

in accordance with the international accounting standards (IASs/IFRSs) provided for by Legislative

Bl i i i i i . Decree 38 of January 28, 2005 (IAS Decree), as amended by Decree Law 91/2014 (Enhancing Competi-

We made two eql"ty investments to assist OI—SA, based in R|VOI|, which is also a tiveness Decree), which extended the option to all companies other than those for which application of

SACE customer, increase its production for the Asian and North American markets.
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the IASs/IFRSs is mandatory or those permitted to prepare condensed financial statements pursuant
to Art. 2435-bis of the Italian Civil Code (Art. 4(6) of Legislative Decree 38/2005). Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) endorsed by the European Commis-
sion as established by Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002;

I. the faithful representation of the results of operations in the accounts and their presentation in the
financial statements, in line with the IASs/IFRSs, have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Spa
(PwC) in the performance of its statutory auditing activities;

J. the financial statements for 2016 report net income of €11,323 thousand and equity of €323,650 thou-
sand, including the net income for 2016.

The Board of Auditors reports, with regard to the issues within the scope of our responsibilities, that:

e we participated in the Shareholders’ Meetings, all of the meetings of the Board of Directors held to
date, and received periodic information from the Directors on the activities carried out, expected fu-
ture developments, as well as on the most significant operations in terms of size or and/or features
conducted by SIMEST;

e we believe that that the actions resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of Directors
comply with the law and the bylaws and were not manifestly imprudent or otherwise prejudicial to the
integrity of the Company’s assets;

e the transactions engaged in also comply with the law and the bylaws and do not potentially conflict
with the resolutions of the Shareholders or are prejudicial to the integrity of the Company’s assets;

e we examined and monitored the organizational structure of the Company and the functioning of its
internal control, administrative and accounting system, as well as the reliability of the latter in cor-
rectly representing operational events, by obtaining information from individual department heads
and PwC, the independent auditors responsible for the statutory audit, and by examining corporate
documentation;

e we monitored the adequacy of the controls against risks of non-compliance with rules and regulations
through periodic meetings with the head of the Compliance function;

e we held meetings with the independent auditor, PwC, during which we exchanged information;
we received no complaints pursuant to Articles 2408 and 2409(7) of the Italian Civil Code;
during the year we issued favorable opinions, as provided for by law, concerning the calculation of the
compensation for directors assigned special duties;

e we monitored the work of the Supervisory Body by virtue of the Company’s adoption of the complian-
ce model envisaged under Legislative Decree 231/01 (the General section of which was updated) and
no reports were received concerning the model that would require special mention in this Report. Fur-
thermore, SIMEST’s finance operations are subject to the oversight of the State Audit Court pursuant
to Article 12 of Law 259/1958.

In addition, the Board of Auditors reports that:

1. we have examined the draft financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, provided to us
by the time limit established in Article 2429 of the Italian Civil Code;

2. as this body is not responsible for performing the statutory audit of the financial statements, we mo-
nitored the general approach to their preparation and their general compliance with the provisions of
law concerning their layout and structure;

3. asto the information obtained from the Directors and through meetings with the independent auditors
responsible for the statutory audit, we found no atypical and/or unusual transactions carried out du-
ring 2016. With regard to transactions with related parties, the Directors report on the main operations
carried out during the year with the controlling shareholder, SACE Spa and the members of the CDP
Group in the notes to the financial statements, specifically in the section “Transactions with related
parties”; they appear to have been carried out in the interests of the Company and on market terms;
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refer to this section for information on the types of transactions carried out and their impact on the
Company’s performance and financial position;

we have ascertained that the financial statements correspond to the information at our disposal, fol-
lowing the performance of our duties, and we have no special comments in this regard;

we have examined the format of the draft financial statements, their general compliance with the pro-
visions of law concerning their layout and structure and have no particular observations in that regard;
we have also verified compliance with the provisions of law governing the preparation of the report on
operations and have no comments that would require special mention here;

the independent auditor, PwC, in its report on the financial statements dated March 24, 2017 pursuant
to Article 14 Legislative Decree 39 of January 27, 2010, did not have any particular observations or
issue an adverse opinion. PwC also certified that the report on operations is consistent with the Com-
pany’s financial statements at December 31, 2016;

in the course of its audit of the 2015 financial statements 2015, PwC performed additional extraordi-
nary work related to the first-time adoption of the IASs/IFRSs, as provided in its contract for the con-
duct the statutory audit for the years 2015 -2017 referred to in paragraph 4.3(b), requesting additional
compensation, for the 2015 financial statements only, of €30,000.

Therefore, on August 12, 2016, the Board of Auditors issued its reasoned proposal, prepared in accor-
dance with Article 13, paragraph 1 of Legislative Decree 39/2010, on extending the period and supple-
menting the compensation provided for in the contract with PwC for the years 2015-2017; this proposal
was approved by SIMEST’s Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on September 14, 2016;

to the best of our knowledge, in preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors did not avail
itself of the exemption permitted under Article 2423(4) of the Italian Civil Code;

in 2016, there were a total of 14 meetings of the Board of Directors and 2 Shareholders’ Meetings, one
of which was an Extraordinary Meeting, all of which were attended by the Board of Auditors. The Bo-
ard of Auditors held 7 meetings, to which the judge designated by the State Audit Court was always
invited.

In view of the foregoing and taking account of the findings of the external auditors responsible for the sta-
tutory audit, which are contained in their report accompanying the financial statements issued on March
24, 2017, we recommend that you approve the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016
and concur with the allocation of net profit proposed in the notes to the financial statements, specifically
€566,171 to the legal reserve as provided for by Article 2430 of the Italian Civil Code and €11,323,427 as
profit for the year to be distributed as resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Milan, March 27, 2017

THE BOARD OF AUDITORS

Daniele Discepolo Chairman
Laura Guazzoni Standing auditor
Carlo Hassan Standing auditor
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RELAZIONE DELLA SOCIETA" M REVISIONE INDIPENDENTE Al SENSI
DELL'ARTICOLD 14 DEL DLGS 27 GENMAID 2010, N 39

Agli Asfonistl della
Societ Italisma per le Imprese all'Estero - SIMEST SpA

Relarione sul bilarcio d'esereixio

Abbiama svolto ta revisione contabile dell'allegatno bilancio d'esercizio della Societd Italiana per Je
Imprese all'Esters — SIMEST SpA, costituito dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2016, dal conto
economicn, dal prospetto della redditivita complessiva, dal prospetto defle variazioni del patrimonio
netto, dal rendiconto finanziario per Nesercizio chiuzo a tale data, da una sintesi dei principi contabili
significativi e dalle altre note esplicative.

Responsabilitd degli amministratori per il bilancio desercizio

Gli amministratord sono responsabili per I redazione del bilancio d'esercizio che fornisca una
rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformith agli International Financial Reporting Standards
adottati dall'Unione Europea,

Responselbilitd delle soctetd di revisione

E' nostra la di espritnere un giodizo sul bilaneio d'esercizio sulla base della revizione
Nﬂubﬂn.ﬂhﬂﬂmm“mnﬂmhnﬂhimm mmd:ilaﬁ in conformitd ai Principi di revisione internazionali
(154 Ttalia) elaborati ai sensi dellarticolo 11 del DILgs 39/10. Tali principi richiedono il rispetto di
principi etici, nonché la planificazione o svolgimento della revisione contabile al fine di soquisine una
rigionevole Scnrexza che i hitancio d'esercizio non contenga errort significativi.

La revisione eontabile comporta lo svolgimento dil procediore volte ad acquisire elementi probativi a
supporte degli importi e delle informazioni contenuti nel bilancio d°esercizio. Le procedur: soelte
dipendono dal giudizio profesdonale del revisore, inclaza la valutazione dei rischi & ervovi significativi
nel bilaneio d'esercizio dovat a feodi o a comportamenti o eventi non inlenzionall. NellPeffettuare tali
valutazioni del rischio, 1l revisore comsidera il controllo interno relative alla vedazions del bilancio
d'esercizio dell Tmpresa che fornisca una rppresentazione veritiera e corretta al fine di definire
procedure di revisione appropriate alle circostanze, & pon per esprimere un giwdizio sull'effcscia del
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controllo internoe dell impresa. La revisione contabile comprende altres la valutazions

dell appropriatezza dei principi contabili adottati, della ragionevolezza delle stime contabili effettuate
dagli amminkstratori, nonché la valutazione della presentazione del bilancio d'esercizio nel suo
cHnplessn,

Riteniamo di aver soquisito elementi probativi sufficienti ed appropriati su cul basare il postro

Giudizin

A nostro giudizio, il bilancio d'esercizio fornisce una rappresentarione veritiera e corretta della
situnzione patrimaniale e finanziaria della Secietd Italinna per le Impress all"Estero — SIMEST SpA al
31 dicembre 2016 ¢ del risultato sconomico e dei flussl di cassa per Vesercizio chiuso a tale data, in
conformita agli International Financial Reporting Standards adottati dall"Unione Europes.

Relazione su altre disposizioni di legge ¢ regolamentari
Ciudizio sulla coerenza della relazione sulla gestione con if bifaneio d'esercizio

Abbiamo svolto ke procedure indicate nel principio di revisione (8A Italia) n® 7208 al fine di esprimere,
come richiesto dalle norme di legge, un gindizio sulla coerenza della relazione sulla gestione, la cui
responsabilith compete agh amministratori della Socioth Italiana per be Imprese all'Estero - SIMEST
Spd, con il bilancio d'esercizio delln Societd Italiana per be Imprese all Estero - SIMEST SpA al a1
dicembre 2016, A nostro giudizio la relazione sulla gestione & coerente con il bilancio d"esercizio della
Socleti ltalinna per le Imprese all'Estero ~ SIMEST SpA al 31 dicembre 2016,

Roma, 24 marzo 2017
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Approval of the
financial statements
at December 31, 2016

On April 12, 2017 the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, representing 96.85% of the share capital,
unanimously approved the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the
allocation of net profit for the year of €11,323,427 as follows:

- 5% or €566,171 to the legal reserve;
- €6,965,802 to the shareholders in the amount of 2.2 cents per share;
- the remainder of €3,791,454 to the extraordinary reserve.
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